

PBO Lab[™] **2.0** (Particle Beam Optics Laboratory)

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module

Distributed by

AccelSoft, Inc. P. O. Box 2813 Del Mar, CA 92014 USA

(858) 677-0133 accelsoft@ghga.com www.ghga.com/accelsoft



PBO Lab 2.0 User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module
© 1997, 1999, 2000 by G. H. Gillespie Associates, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Second Printing: March 2001

ISBN 1-892267-04-7

All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced, in any form or by any means, without permission from the publisher.

Printed in the United States of America.

Published by AccelSoft Inc., San Diego, California.



"TRANSPORT User Manual"

Third-Order TRANSPORT with MAD Input, A Computer Program for Designing Charged Particle
 Beam Transport Systems, by D. C. Carey, K. L. Brown and F. Rothacker, October 1998.
 Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory report number Fermilab-Pub-98-310, UC-414.
 Stanford Linear Accelerator Center report number SLAC-R-530.
 Reproduced for distribution with PBO Lab by permission.

DISCLAIMER NOTICE (TRANSPORT - Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory):

This material was prepared as part of work sponsored by the United States Department of Energy. The Department of Energy, Universities Research Association, Inc., and their agents and employees, make no warranty, express or implied, and assume no legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or process disclosed, nor represent that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.

DISCLAIMER NOTICE (TRANSPORT - Stanford Linear Accelerator Center):

The items furnished herewith were developed under the sponsorship of the U.S. Government. Neither the U.S., nor the U.S. Department of Energy, nor the Leland Stanford Junior University, nor their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any liability or responsibility for accuracy, completeness or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product or process disclosed, or represents that its use will not infringe privately-owned rights. Mention of any product, its manufacturer, or suppliers shall not, nor is it intended to, imply approval, disapproval, or fitness for any particular use. The U.S. and the University at all times retain the right to use and disseminate the furnished items for any purpose whatsoever.

TRANSPORT is a FORTRAN program maintained and distributed by the Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory and the Stanford Linear Accelerator Center. TRANSPORT is included with the PBO Lab software with the written permission of both the Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory and the Stanford Linear Accelerator Center.



This page is intentionally blank.



Table of Contents

Chapter and Subject Page Beam Line Global Parameters 10 TRANSPORT Commands Menu 51



Table of Contents (continued)

Chapter and Subject

6.	Displaying and Creating Matrices	59
	Show R-Matrix	61
	Creating a Matrix Piece	61
	Show Sigma Matrix	63
	Creating a Beam Piece	63
	Make Matrix Piece Command	65
7.	TRANSPORT Options	69
	Calculation Order and Output Result	72
	Print Options	73
	Output and Punch File Options	74
8.	TRANSPORT Plot Specifications	77
	Plotting Matrix Elements vs. Length	81
	Plotting Envelope, Centroid and Lattice Functions	
	vs. Accumulated Length	82
	Plotting Floor Coordinates	84
	Plotting Final Ellipses	84
	Graph Plot Windows	84
9.	TRANSPORT Fitting	85
	Fitting Variables	88
	Named Parameter List Window	91
	Fitting Constraints	92
	Fitting Constraints Window	94
	Constraint Expressions List Window	97
	Perform Fitting	98
	Update Variables and Expressions	99
10	Appendix: "TRANSPORT User Manual" Third-Order TRANSPORT with MAD Input, A Computer Program for Designing Charged Particle Beam Transport Systems	101

PBO Lab 2.0

Getting Started

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module

1. Getting Started

This Section is intended as a quick start introduction for running the TRANSPORT Application Module in the Particle Beam Optics Laboratory. The remainder of this Supplement describes the PBO Lab user interface features that are specific to the TRANSPORT Application Module. Refer to the PBO Lab User Manual for more general information on the PBO Lab user interface. The "TRANSPORT User Manual" describes the TRANSPORT program.

Running TRANSPORT

Execution of TRANSPORT is accomplished from the Commands Submenu, shown in Figure 1, by selecting one of the Write Input and Run Transport commands.



Figure 1. TRANSPORT Commands Menu.

The Write Input and Run Transport command provides options for running TRANSPORT with or without Fitting. Both options will generate the native input and execute TRANSPORT for the beamline in the Model Space of the Document Window. The second command in this group opens the Transport Plot Specifications Window.

The next group of commands provide options to separate the generation of input from the execution of TRANSPORT.

The next group of commands is for the display of diagnostic data, followed by a Submenu that provides access to userspecified Named Parameters, Variables, Expressions and Fitting Constraints for the entire beamline. This Supplement describes the user interface features specific to the TRANSPORT Application Module. Refer to the main PBO Lab User Manual for more general information on the PBO Lab user interface. Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for a description of the TRANSPORT program.

The Commands Submenu for TRANSPORT is used to set various options and output parameters for the TRANSPORT Application Module as described in this Supplement.

PBO Lab provides a group of commands that can be used to generate the native TRANSPORT input independently from the execution of the TRANSPORT program. Using these commands allows the input generated by PBO Lab to be modified directly before running TRANSPORT.





The last command in the TRANSPORT Commands menu is used to access various options and output parameters.

To Run the TRANSPORT Application Module simply select the command to Write Input and Run Transport without Fitting from the Commands Menu as illustrated in Figure 2. The native Transport Output file is automatically displayed in a scrollable Text Edit Window upon completion of the run. Use the Save As command in the File Menu of the Text Edit Window to rename the output file if desired. Both the Transport Input and Output files will be overwritten on any subsequent execution of the TRANSPORT Application Module.

NSPORT	<u>Write Input an</u> Transport <u>P</u> lot Write <u>I</u> nput an	d Run Transport Gpecification d View	With <u>Fitting</u> Without Fitti <u>ng</u>	\rightarrow	Selecting the Command	first item in s Menu gen	the TRANSPO erates the native
pute All AutoCalcs	⊻iew 'Transport <u>R</u> un 'Transport	t Input' File Input' File	the Document Window and the				id then executes
	Show R-M <u>a</u> trix Show Sigma Ma	atrix			TRANS	PORT Appl	Ication Module
	List Windows	•					
	Options						
7 TransportOutput						\neg	
ile <u>E</u> dit <u>F</u> ont							
(8) *PARAM* VARIED	-VARY4 -	U.26500000E+03					
(2) *1ST ORDER (3) *PMASS * (11) *BEAM* 0.000	* * BEAMO " M	0.18750E+01 0.08663 GEV	1.	1. 0.000 0.000	6.724 mm 29.183 mr -0.95	2	
(12) ×DDIFT×	*DDFT01 *	0 17200 ¥		0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	28.552 nr 0.00 0.011 M 0.00 0.011 R 0.00	0 0.000 0.934 0 0.000 0.000 0 0.000 0.000	0.000 0.000 -0.121
(13) *DRIFI* 0.173 (14) *OUAD*	M "OUAD02"	0.09600 M	-265.00000 KG ∕M		(-0.09903 M)	
0.269 (15) *DRIFT*	M "DRFT03"	0.03975 M				,	
0.309 (16) *DRIFT*	M "DRFT04"	0.03975 M					
(17) *QUAD* 0 445	"QUAD05"	0.09600 M	265.00000 KG /M		(0.13131 M)	
(18) *DRIFT* 0.487	"DRFT06"	0.04274 M					
(19) *DRIFT* 0.530	"DRFT07" M	0.04274 M					
(20) *QUAD* 0.626	"QUADOS" H	0.09600 M	-265.00000 KG /M		(-0.09903 M)	
(21) *DRIFI* 0.672 (22) *DRIFT*	"DRF109" M	0.04574 M					
0.717 (23) *QUAD*	M "QUAD11"	0.09600 M	265.00000 KG /M		(0.13131 M)	
0.813 (24) *DRIFT*	M "DRFT12"	0.04873 M			,		
0.862 (25) *DRIFT*	M "DRFT13"	0.04873 M					
(26) *QUAD* 0.959	H "QUAD14" H	0.04800 M	-265.00000 KG ∕M	0.000 0.000 0.000	(-0.21936 M 1.908 mm 31.505 mr -0.06 14.492 mm 0.00) 4 0 0.000	
				0.000	13.799 mr 0.00 0.014 H 0.00	0 0.000 -0.954 0 0.000 0.000	0.000
TRANSFORM -0.789 -7.208 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	1 39 -0.13877 (19 -2.53398 (00 0.00000 - 00 0.00000 (00 0.00000 (00 0.00000 (0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.62283 -0.18034 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000	0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 0.95688 0.00000 1.00000	U.UUU	U.UII K 0.00	u u.uuu u.000	0.000 0.609

Figure 2. Executing the TRANSPORT Application Module.



Figure 2 illustrates the selection of the first command, which will write the native Transport Input file and run TRANSPORT for the current beamline model. The selected command is executed after the mouse button is released. Following execution, the Transport Output file will be displayed, as illustrated in Figure 2.

PBO Lab also provides graphic representations of data generated from TRANSPORT. The Transport Plot Specification command in the Commands Menu can be used to direct output to the Transport Plot file which is used by PBO Lab to generate interactive graph plots. Any plot specifications will result in PBO Lab Graph Plot Windows being opened automatically after execution of TRANSPORT. A description of Transport Plot Specifications can be found in Chapter 8 of this Supplement. The user interface for Graph Plot Windows is described in the main PBO Lab User Manual. Figure 2 is an example of the output window that is displayed when the TRANSPORT run is completed. The content of the native Transport Output file will depend on various options and output parameters set by the user.



This page is intentionally blank.

PBO Lab ^w 2.0

TRANSPORT Application Module

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



2. TRANSPORT Application Module

This Section describes the PBO Lab Application Context and Global Parameters that are specific to the TRANSPORT Application Module. Refer to the Getting Started and User Interface Chapters of the PBO Lab User Manual for more general information on the PBO Lab user interface. The "TRANSPORT User Manual," included with this Supplement, describes the TRANSPORT program in general and each of the native TRANSPORT input parameters.

	Set	th e T	e Application Con RANSPORT App	text pop-up for lication Module			G	reen dots i are native	ndicate v inputs fo	which Para or TRANSP	meters ORT	
le E	PBO-La jile <u>E</u> dit TRANSPOI	ab - Vie RT	Example B - Modified.pt	ool orial Di EM (24)	0 2 7 x					-h Densla		
		-	Globals	Tra	cing/Tracking		Floor Coordin	tes 1	[⊥]	ab Panels j	provide ac	cess to
I	1 1		Particle Charge	1	е	1	93	ò	a	aditional G	lobal Para	ameters
I	Beam		Particle Mass	1875.000000	MeV 💌	0.5110	2.22e+005	•	a	for the h	eamline n	nodel
I	— -	_	Beam Energy	2.000000	MeV 🔻	0.0010	1.00e+010	•				
I	Drift		Beam Current	0.000000	mAmp 🔻	0.0000	1.00e-007					
I			Frequency	80.000000	MHz 🔻	3.0000	3.00e+004	•				
I	Quad		Maximum Step Size	0.010000	m 🔹	0.0020	10.0000					
	Silenid Seend RBend Bend	-	Beam DRFT QD-1	Drift Drift DRFT O	Quad Drift	Drift DRFT QD-3	Drift DRFT	Drift - Quad DRFT QD-4	Drift DRFT	Drift - Quad DRFT HFQD	Final FINAL	
										16	Pieces	

Figure 3. TRANSPORT Application Context and Global Parameters.

The Application Context pop-up in the Button Bar of the Document Window is shown in Figure 3. The Application Context does not need to be set for TRANSPORT in order to execute TRANSPORT commands. However, the Application Context is used to indicate which input parameters are native inputs for TRANSPORT. Native inputs are indicated in the Global Parameters and in each Piece Window using green dots that appear to the right of a parameter.

The Application Context is used to identify native parameters with green dot indicators.

The Application Context is also used to activate any application-specific buttons and in some cases, to determine which application-specific windows will be opened.



Beamline Global Parameters

The PBO Lab Beamline Global Parameters are described in the Getting Started and User Interface Chapters of the PBO Lab User Manual. This Section discusses the Global Parameters that are used by the TRANSPORT Application Module.

The PBO Lab Global Parameters include native TRANSPORT inputs such as the Particle Charge, Particle Mass, Energy and Frequency, which are global to the entire beamline model. The native Global Parameters for TRANSPORT include the Particle Charge, Particle Mass, Beam Energy and Frequency. These parameters are indicated with green dots when the Application Context is set for TRANSPORT in the Document Window, as shown in Figures 3 and 4.



Figure 4. Beamline Global Parameters in the Document Window.

The Particle Charge Global Parameter is not a native TRANSPORT input. However, PBO Lab does use another native TRANSPORT input, PREF in order to scale all magnetic fields to a "reference momentum", which is different from the beam momentum "PO". Internally TRANSPORT converts all fields by the ratio of PO/PREF and in the native Transport Output file, the scaled fields are printed. The use of PREF in TRANSPORT is described in the "TRANSPORT User Manual" included with this Supplement. PBO Lab calculates an effective PREF and writes it to the Transport Input file, handling all other necessary conversions as well.

Several of the Global Parameters are also used for a variety of PBO Lab calculations and displays, although they may not be native inputs for TRANSPORT. Additional Global Parameters are accessed from the Tracing/Tracking tab panel and the Floor Coordinates tab panel as illustrated in Figure 4 on the previous page.

The Tracing/Tracking Global Parameters tab panel (Figure 4) has inputs that are used by both the TURTLE and MARYLIE Application Modules. These parameters are described in each of the Supplements for those Application Modules. The Tracing/Tracking Global Parameters are not used by the TRANSPORT Application Module.

Initial Floor Coordinates and Orientation Parameters

Included with the beamline Global Parameters are a set of Initial Floor Coordinate Parameters of the beam reference trajectory, which are shown in Figure 4. These parameters are used to specify the initial coordinates and the orientation of the reference trajectory. If these parameters are zero (default values are zero) then TRANSPORT assumes that the beamline will start at the origin and proceed along the positive z-axis. Floor plots are specified in the Transport Plot Specification Window described in Chapter 8 of this Supplement. Although the Particle Charge is not a native TRANSPORT input, PBO Lab utilizes another TRANSPORT native input parameter, PREF, that is used to scale all magnetic fields to a "reference momentum" which is different from the beam momentum.

A green dot next to a parameter indicates that it is a native input for the current Application Context set in the Document Window.

The Tracking and Tracing Global Parameters are not used by the TRANSPORT Application Module.

Included with the PBO Lab Global Parameters are the Initial Floor Coordinates and Orientation inputs that are used by TRANSPORT.





This page is intentionally blank.

PBO Lab[®] 2.0

Beamline Elements

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



3. Beamline Elements

The PBO Lab Pieces implemented for TRANSPORT are listed in Table 1 below. Native TRANSPORT inputs for these elements are indicated in the Piece Windows. As with the Global Parameters, green dots are found to the right of Piece Parameters that are native inputs. (The Application Context must be set for TRANSPORT in the Button Bar of the Document Window.)

Beam Beam	Bend Bend	Accelerator	n ₅⊷ Eta
Drift Drift	Edge Edge	Align	≫=2.0 y=5.0 z=x/3y Param
Quadrupole	Lens Lens	t Kicker Kicker	PREF=10 MOLIA SPEC Special
Solenoid	Plasma Lens		∆ Marker Marker
RF Gap	Sextupole	Rotate	Final Final
Sector Bend	Octupole	Septum Septum	
Rectangular Bend	Centroid	Matrix	

Table 1. PBO Lab Pieces supported by TRANSPORT.

Table 1 lists all of the Pieces that are recognized by TRANSPORT. Pieces in the beamline model that are not supported by TRANSPORT will be treated as zero-length drifts when PBO Lab generates the native input for TRANSPORT.

The Piece Window user interface is described in the Getting Started and User Interface Chapters of the PBO Lab User Manual. However, several pieces have features that are specific to TRANSPORT and those are described separately in this Chapter. The "TRANSPORT User Manual" (included with this Supplement) describes the implementation of the other elements supported by the TRANSPORT Application Module in PBO Lab. Many Pieces also provide run-time Tutorials that are accessed from the Tutorial buttons in the Piece Windows.





The beamline model must include a Beam Piece in order to generate the native beam inputs for TRANSPORT.

The native beam inputs for TRANSPORT can be generated from either the Semi-Axes or Twiss Beam Piece Parameters.

TRANSPORT permits the use of the Twiss parameter representation only for the transverse phase planes (horizontal and vertical) of the initial beam.

Beam Piece

PBO Lab uses the Beam Piece to generate the initial Sigma-Matrix for TRANSPORT. The beamline model must include a Beam Piece, usually as the first piece in the beamline as illustrated in Figure 5. The Beam Piece is used to specify the initial Sigma-Matrix for TRANSPORT in two different ways, referred to as the Semi-Axes representation and the Twiss, or Courant-Snyder representation. The Semi-Axes representation is more general and allows for the complete specification of any Sigma-Matrix, including correlations between different phase planes. The Twiss parameter representation is useful for specifying initial beams in which the phase planes (horizontal, vertical and longitudinal) are decoupled. TRANSPORT permits the use of the Twiss parameter representation only for the transverse phase planes (horizontal and vertical) of the initial beam.



Figure 5. Initial Beam Parameters in the Beam Piece Window.



Both the Semi-Axes and Twiss parameters are shown in Figure 6 illustrating the Beam Piece Window. There is a Button Bar at the top of the window, two tab panels for parameter inputs (Beam and Centroid Parameters) and a set of dynamic phase space ellipse plots. The Centroid tab panel of the Beam Piece is not used by TRANSPORT. However, PBO Lab does provide a Centroid Piece that is supported by TRANSPORT. The Particle Distribution Type pop-up does not apply to TRANSPORT but the Beam Parameters pop-up is used to select between the Semi-Axes and Courant-Snyder (Twiss) beam parameter sets.

The Centroid Piece can be used to shift the centroid trajectory of the beam, relative to the reference trajectory, or axis, of the beamline.

The Beam Parameters pop-up is used to select between the two independent parameter sets for Semi-Axes or Courant-Snyder beam representations.



Figure 6 Semi-Axes and Twiss Beam Piece Parameters.



The two different beam parameter sets are independent, although one set may be calculated from the other.

The green dots to the right of individual parameters in the Piece Windows indicate which will be used to generate TRANSPORT input.

The Semi-Axes beam representation includes a correlation matrix in the beam description.

The two different beam parameter sets (Semi-Axis and Twiss) are independent, although one set may be calculated from the other. When the Twiss Beam Parameters are selected, the Compute From Semi-Axes button will calculate the equivalent Twiss parameters for the current Semi-Axes parameters. When the Semi-Axes parameter set is selected the Compute From Twiss button will calculate the equivalent Semi-Axes parameters for the current Twiss parameters. The Compute From... button is in the Button Bar at the top of the Beam Piece Window.

When Semi-Axes Beam Parameters are selected, correlations may be included in the beam description using the Correlations button in the Button Bar of the Beam Piece Window. The Correlations button opens the Correlation Matrix Window shown in Figure 7. Correlations may be entered directly as off-diagonal elements of the Sigma Matrix, or by entering values for the Reduced Sigma Matrix. The radio buttons at the top of the window toggle between these two modes. Corresponding values are calculated for the inactive selection using the inputs from the active selection.

The Beam Correlations Matrix Window is opened with the Correlations button in the Beam Piece Window.

Correlations may be entered directly as off-diagonal elements of the Sigma Matrix, or by entering values for the Reduced Sigma Matrix.



Figure 7. TRANSPORT Correlation Matrix Window.



The Beam Piece Window includes dynamic phase space ellipse plots for the current beam parameters. The top plot shows the horizontal (red) and vertical (blue) transverse phase space ellipses. The bottom plot is the longitudinal (green) phase space ellipse. The axis scales for the phase space ellipse plots can be calculated automatically with the Auto Scale Plots button in the Button Bar at the top of the window or the scales may be set directly by the user with the Set Plot Scale button.

The Tutorial button in the Button Bar at the top of the Beam Piece Window opens the PBO Lab Tutorial for the Beam Piece and leads to the Hypertext Tutorial shown in Figure 8. The Beam Piece Tutorial provides a variety of useful information including descriptions of the beam Sigma Matrix, Semi-Axes and Twiss parameter representations, phase space projections, the beam centroid and several other related topics. The Beam Piece Window includes phase space ellipse plots for the current Beam Parameters.

The Beam Piece Tutorial provides a variety of useful information on modeling beams in TRANSPORT.



Figure 8. PBO Lab Beam Piece Tutorial Windows.



Marker Piece



The Marker Piece is a special PBO Lab Piece that is used to specify application-specific Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters at specific locations in the beamline model. An example of the Marker Piece Window is shown in Figure 9.



Figure 9. Marker Piece Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters.



The Marker and Final Pieces may be used to specify locations in the beamline where a Constraint is to be be imposed, Diagnostic data is to be output or Stored Parameter data is to be collected.

There are three scrollable lists in the Marker Piece Window that display selected Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters for installed Application Modules. The example in Figure 9 has Constraints specified for both the TRANSPORT and MARYLIE Application Modules. Diagnostics have been selected for TRANSPORT and TURTLE. Stored Parameters are specified for TRANSPORT only. Application-specific windows, tailored to the particular capabilities of each Application Module, are used to specify Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters.



The Open buttons in each panel of the Marker Piece Window are used to open the application-specific windows for the current Application Context. In order to open the TRANSPORT application-specific windows for Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters the Application Context pop-up must be set for TRANSPORT as illustrated in Figures 9 and 10 The Application Context can be set in either the Document Window or directly in the Marker Piece Window.

The Application Context pop-up must be set for TRANSPORT in order to open the TRANSPORT windows for Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters.

Transport Fitting 0	Constraints		×	
Co R11 + R22 Select Matrix C R Matrix C R Matrix C T Matrix C T Matrix Reg C U Matrix Reg S11 S12 S13 S S21 S22 S23 S S31 S32 S33 S S41 S42 S43 S S41 S42 S43 S S41 S42 S43 S	Correlation Matrix i	Value • 0.0000 + -	Tolerance 0.0001	The Application Context must be set for TRANSPORT to Open the Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters Windows
	Constraint Expression	Value	Tolerance	
R11 + R22		0.0000	0,0001	Open Remove
Transport Location Marker Print Print Rena (Sigma) Matrix Ri Transfer Matrix Postions and Sizes of Nearby Waists Auxiliary (R2) Transfer Matrix Beam Parameters in Acceleration Notation Rena Centrold (if off axis) Comment Marker Set Reference Marker With Label MARK following CELL_1	Misaign Misaignment Start, R1 Matrix Misaignment Start, R2 Matrix Readign Reference Trajectory Intialization Reinitialize R1 & R2 Reinitialize Auxiliar r11 Select Matrix C H Matrix C H Matrix C H Matrix Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat	Image: Name Image: Name Storage Name Image: Name	Fill Trix Fill Horizontal Beam Half V Horizontal Beam Centrol Accelerator Function B Beam Line Accumulater	Usignostics Transport Beam (Sigma) Matrix: Transport Beam Centrold (f off axis) Turtle Scatter - Y'vs. X Turtle Scatter - Y'vs. X Open Remove Store Image: Conserver of the store of the st

Figure 10. Location Specific Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters.



Refer to the TRANSPORT Fitting Chapter for a description of using the PBO Lab Marker Piece for the specification of TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints. Location-Specific Constraints

The Open button in the Constraints panel opens the Transport Fitting Constraints Window as illustrated in Figure 10. Refer to the Transport Fitting Chapter for a description of using the Marker Piece for location specific fitting constraints.

Location-Specific Diagnostics

The Open button in the Diagnostics panel of the Marker Piece Window opens the Transport Location Marker Window. This window, shown in Figure 11, is tailored to the particular capabilities of TRANSPORT for generating output for specific locations in the beamline model. There are three panels in the window for selecting various options at the location of the Marker Piece in the beamline model. The Print panel provides a variety of diagnostic output options that will result in location-specific data written to the Transport Output file. The Misalignment and Initialization panels have options for location-specific commands that are used for misalignment and reinitialization of the R1 and/or R2 transfer matrices.

> The Transport Location Marker Window, opened from the Diagnostics Panel in the Marker Piece Window, includes panels for Print Options as well as Misalignment and Initializations



Figure 11. Transport Location Marker Window.

Many of the Print options in the Transport Location Marker Window can also be selected in the Transport Options Window for the end of the beamline model or after every element in the beamline.

Location-Specific Stored Output Parameters

The Open button in the Store panel of the Marker Piece Window opens the Transport Stored Parameters Window shown in Figure 12. This window is used to specify the storage of TRANSPORT parameters at the location of the Marker Piece in the beamline model. Stored Parameters are shown in the TRANSPORT Output file and can also be used in Algebraic Parameter Expressions or in Fitting Constraint Expressions.

It is not necessary to know all of the TRANSPORT keywords, the Stored Parameters Window provides user friendly controls for selecting any applicable TRANSPORT output parameters. Refer to Table 5 in the TRANSPORT Fitting Chapter for a list of TRANSPORT keywords.

Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for a description of individual output parameters that can be stored.



Figure 12. TRANSPORT Stored Parameters Window.





To Store a TRANSPORT Output Parameter, enter a unique parameter name in the Storage Name input field and select the Output Parameter with the controls provided in the Stored Parameters Window.

Copying Marker Pieces with Stored Parameters will duplicate Parameter Names and may result in unintended consequences.

Stored Output Parameters can be selected from the five different matrices or the four pop-up controls in the Stored Parameters Window.

Stored Output Parameters are saved with the beamline model document.

To specify a Stored Output Parameter, enter a symbolic parameter name in the Storage Name input field at the top of the window. Stored Parameter Names should be unique. They should not be identical to any Parameter Names that have been defined for special parameter settings or other Stored Parameters. Note that creating a copy of a Marker Piece will also copy any Stored Parameters that have been defined for that Piece. This will result in duplicate Stored Parameter Names on the two Marker Pieces. The duplicate names will be sent to TRANSPORT but the value for the first parameter will be overwritten when the second parameter is encountered.

After a Storage Name has been entered, a TRANSPORT output parameter can be selected from the five different matrices or the four pop-up controls. To select a matrix element, first select the radio button for the desired matrix: Beam Matrix, Correlation Matrix, R-Matrix, T-Matrix or U-Matrix. Then a matrix element can be selected by clicking on the desired element in the matrix panel. The R-, T-, and U-Matrices also have pop-up controls to choose between Regular or Auxiliary matrices. The T- and U-Matrices have pop-ups for the additional dimensions of these matrices. The matrix panel is used to select elements for all of the matrices and it will reflect the corresponding elements when a matrix radio button is selected. After a selection has been made, use the Accept button to add it to the storage list at the bottom of the window.

In addition to matrix elements, there are four pop-ups that may be selected from: Beam Envelope and Beam Centroid parameters, Lattice Functions and Floor Coordinates. After a selection has been made from any of these popups, the Accept button is used to add it to the storage list at the bottom of the window.

All of the special parameter settings for a PBO Lab beamline model, including any Stored Parameter specifications, are saved using the Save or Save As commands in the File Menu of the Document Window.

Stored Parameters List Window

PBO Lab provides application-specific interactive List Windows that organize related data for the entire beamline model. The Stored Parameters List Window contains a list of location-specific Stored Output Parameters. Figure 13 illustrates opening the Stored Parameters List Window from the List Windows Submenu in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu.

The Stored Parameters List Window can be used to quickly access Marker and Final Pieces with user-specified Stored Parameters. Double-clicking an entry in the window will open the associated Marker (or Final) Piece Window in the beamline model.

To resize a column in a List Window, place the mouse over the divider line in the column header. When the arrow turns into a cross-hair, resize by holding the mouse button down while dragging horizontally.

All	of	the	user-specified	Stored
Out	tput	Para	ameters can be a	ccessed
fror	n a	conv	enient List Wind	OW.

Double-click an entry in the List Window to open the associated Marker (or Final) Piece Window in the beamline model.

The header at the top of the List Window can be used to adjust the width of each column in the window.

醫器 図習 PBO-Lab - Problem 3.pbol *						- 🗆 ×
<u>File Edit View Commands T</u> ools Tutorial	,					
TRANSPORT	<u>W</u> rite Input and Run Transport → Transport <u>P</u> lot Specification	The TRANSPO	Stored Parameters ORT Commands n	command nenu opens	in the the Store	d
RBend BEAMLINE	Write <u>I</u> nput and View <u>Vi</u> ew 'Transport Input' File <u>R</u> un 'Transport Input' File	Parameters Stored Pa	s List Window, wh arameters for the e	iich contain ntire beam	ns all of th line mode	e 1
Bend Compute All AutoCalcs	Show R-M <u>a</u> trix <u>S</u> how Sigma Matrix	0.0010 1.00e- 0.0000 1.00e	+010 ¢ -007			
Frequency	Make a Matri <u>x</u> Piece	3.0000 3.00e-	+004 ©			
Lens	List Windows	Named Parameters Parameter Expression Fitting Constraint Ex Stored Parameters	ons (pressions			
High High Beam - Drift Quad - C BEAMO DRFT1 QUAD2 DA	rift - Quod - Mater - Drift - RFT3 QUAD4 MARK1 DRFT5	SBEND6 DR	ift Marker QUADB [Drift QUAD1	Drift - F	하고 하려 NAL
Mainer		Stored Outp	ut Parameters		_ 0	\mathbf{X}
×=2.0 y=5.0 y=√3y		Label	Storage Name	Keyword	Value	
		FINAL	R11_FINAL	R11	-3.292881]_
		FINAL	R33_FINAL	R33	-1.660062	
		MARK1	R11_MARK1	R11	-0.359655	
Double-clicking an entry in the	Stored Parameters	MARK1	R33_MARK1	R33	2.011237	
Window will open the associa	ted Piece Window \rightarrow	MARK2	R11_MARK2	R11	-3.860363	
		MARK2	R33_MARK2	R33	-1.644846	
						-

Figure 13. Opening the List Window for Stored Output Parameters.





Param Pieces may be placed in the Model Space or the Work Space. Param Piece Parameters can then be referenced from Pieces in the beamline model. PBO Lab provides a Parameter (Param) Piece for user specified model parameters. A Param Piece may be inserted anywhere in the beamline model as illustrated in Figure 14. A Param Piece may also be placed on the Work Space and referenced from Pieces in the beamline model. Each Param Piece can be used to specify up to eight user defined parameters. The Param Piece supports Special Parameter Settings that are accessed with the "S" buttons to the left of each parameter in the Param Piece Window.

Parameter Piece



Figure 14. Parameter (Param) Piece Window.

Refer to the Section on Special Parameter Settings in this Chapter.

Param Piece Parameters require a Symbolic Parameter Name to be specified for each of the special parameter settings options. The S-Buttons open Special Parameter Settings Windows (S-Windows) as illustrated in Figure 15. In the S-Window, a Param Piece Parameter may be defined as a numerical Value and used as a symbolic constant in Parameter Algebraic Expressions. They may also be selected as Fitting Variables or they may be specified by Algebraic Expressions. However, unlike other beamline elements, the Param Piece requires a Symbolic Parameter Name to be specified for each of the special parameter settings



options. A Param Piece Parameter will only be written to the Transport Input file if a Symbolic Parameter Name has been specified in the S-Window.

The Transport Tab Panel in the Special Parameter Settings Windows (S-Windows) is used to specify a Param for Transport	
Special Parameter Settings - Parameter1	x
PARAM DATA - Parameter1 Parameter Variable: Param1	A Symbolic Parameter Name must be Defined in the S-Window in order to use a Param Piece Parameter with Transport
Transport Marylie Image: Constraint of the system Marylie Image: Constraint of the system Paramining Variable: Image: Constraint of the system Paramining Variable: Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the system Image: Constraint of the s	Optimizer Special Parameter Settings - Parameter2 PARAM DATA - Parameter2 Parameter Variable:
	Transport Marylie Optimizer
The Parameter Name for a Defined Param may be used anywhere in the Beamline Model to Define Algebraic Parameter Expressions for other Piece Parameters	C Parameter2 = 0.346000 C Fitting Variable: Param2 C Algebraic Expression: 2*Param1 Param1 Param1 C Import Parameter

Figure 15. Param Piece Special Parameter Settings.

A Param Piece Parameter may also be selected as an Import Parameter in the Special Parameter Settings Window. Refer to the External Data Interface Section in the main PBO Lab User Manual for a description of Import Parameters. Avoid using a Symbolic Parameter Name that is the same as a Piece Comment. This can cause unintended consequences when running TRANSPORT.

The Special Parameter Settings Chapter describes the S-Window in more detail.





The PBO Lab Matrix Piece is supported by the TRANSPORT Application Module and provides a means to represent any arbitrary transformation matrix. First-, Second- and Third-Order matrix elements may be specified directly in the Matrix Piece Window, which is illustrated in Figure 16 below. Alternatively, PBO Lab can use TRANSPORT to calculate the transfer matrix for a selection of one or more Pieces in the beamline model or for the entire beamline.

Matrix Piece



Figure 16. Matrix Piece Window.

The radio buttons and pop-up controls at the top of the Matrix Piece Window provide access to the First-Second- and Third-Order transfer matrices. Radio buttons at the top of the Matrix Piece Window are used to toggle between the R-Matrix, T-Matrix and U-Matrix displays. The R-Matrix represents the First-Order transfer matrix R(i,j), displayed in meters and inverse meters. When the T-Matrix radio button is selected, the Second-Order matrix T(i,j,k), is displayed. The elements of the T-Matrix have an additional index that is selected with the pop-up to the right of the T-Matrix radio button. The Third-Order U-Matrix U(i,j,k,l), is selected with the U-Matrix radio button and has two additional dimensions that are also selected with pop-up controls located to the right of the U-Matrix radio button. The pop-up controls for the T and U matrices are only activated when the corresponding radio button has been selected.



A Matrix Piece can be placed in the beamline model or on the Work Space by dragging the Matrix Piece icon from the Palette Bar of the Document Window. The default Matrix Piece Parameters represent the identity matrix. Matrix elements can be entered directly into the Matrix Piece Window.

A Matrix Piece can be also be generated for a selection of beamline elements using the Create Matrix command. After making a selection of Pieces in the beamline model, use the Create Matrix command in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu to generate a Matrix Piece on the Work Space that represents the selected beamline elements. Refer to the Create Matrix Command Section in Chapter 6: Displaying and Creating Matrices.

The Matrix Piece may be useful for speeding up TRANSPORT calculations for very large beamline models. For example, in a typical fitting calculation (Refer to Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting) only a few Pieces will have Variable Parameters specified. The other static parts of the beamline may be replaced by Matrix Pieces generated as described in the preceding paragraph.

A Matrix Piece can also be generated for the entire beamline model from the Transport R-Matrix Window. After executing TRANSPORT the Show R-Matrix command will open the R-Matrix Window and the Create Matrix button will generate a Matrix Piece representing the entire beamline. Refer to the Creating a Matrix Piece Section in Chapter 6: Displaying and Creating Matrices.

PBO Lab provides an Output File Option in the TRANSPORT Options Window that causes TRANSPORT to generate the transverse matrix components in millimeters and milliradians. This mixed units representation will only appear in the Transport Output File when this option is selected. The Matrix Piece Window will always display the matrix data in meters and inverse meters regardless of the TRANSPORT Output File Option. An arbitrary transfer matrix can be defined directly in the Matrix Piece Window.

A Matrix Piece can be generated for a selection of one or more elements in the beamline model.

A Matrix Piece can be created for the entire beamline after executing TRANSPORT.

The Matrix Piece Window displays the transfer matrices in units of meters, radians and inverse meters, radians regardless of the TRANSPORT Output File Option.

Matrix Pieces may be used to replace static sections of a large beamline. If acceleration elements are in the beamline, Special Pieces may need to be added to change the beam (PO) or reference (PREF) momentum. Refer to the following Section for a discussion of the Special Piece.



Special Piece



The PBO Lab Special Piece is used by the TRANSPORT and TURTLE Application Modules. The Special Piece Window, shown in Figure 17, contains five tab panels. The first four tab panels are used exclusively for TRANSPORT. The fifth tab panel is used for the TURTLE Application Module.

System Parameters System Length [LENG S Reference Traj. Mom S Mag Field Ref. Mom	Floor Frir Value 37H1 0.000000 (P0) 0.000000 0.000000	nges Expansions Units m 💌 GeV/c 0.		The S definit Param TRANS Fringe	Special Pieco tion of loca eters that ca SPORT Syst Field and I	e is provided tion specific in be used to em, Floor C Expansion Pa	for the Special change oordinate arameters	e, S
S Particle Mass [PMA:	Energy			Turtle				
Comments:	Baramotoro		Jes Cxpansions	Limito	=1			
SPEC	S Horz Init Location [XE	BEGIN] 0.000000	m v -IN	F INF O				
	S Vert Init Location [YE	BEGIN] 0.000000	m - IN	if inf o				
	S Long. Init Location [2	🚰 Special				×		
	S Initial (y-axis) angle	Energy		_				
	S Initial (x-axis) angle	System	Floor Fringes	Expans	ions T	urtle		
		Parameters	Value	Units	Limits			
		S Horz(x) Half-Wid [HV	1DTH] 0.000000 cm	ب	0.2000 0.7	077 •		
		S Half Pole Spacing [HG	(AP] 0.000000 cm	n 🔽	0.1000 100.0	000 •		
<u> </u>		S Orbit Disp. Integral [F	Special					×
		S Fringe Field Int. K1 [F	Energy	γ	T/	r		
		S Fringe Field Factor K	System F	Floor	Fringes	Expansions	Turtle	
		 Ent Bala, Easa, Cumuni 	Deremetere	Valua	llnits	L	imits	
		S Ent Pole-Face Curva	- 2pd Order Eield (EPS)	Value	1 4m882	INE	INE	
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS]	0.000000	1/m**2	-INF	INF	•
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS3]	0.000000 0.000000	1/m**2 1/m**3	-INF -INF 0.0000	INF INF 10.0000	• • •
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	s 2nd Order Field [EPS] s 3rd Order Field [EPS3] s Excess Field Fraction [R	0.000000 0.000000 MPS] 0.000000	1/m**2 1/m**3	-INF -INF 0.0000 0.0000	INF INF 10.0000 10.0000	• • •
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS] S Excess Field Fraction [R S Scaling Factor [RNMS] S Vertical Dipole Factor [V	0.000000 0.000000 MPSI 0.000000 0.000000 (R) 0.000000	1/m**2 1/m**3	-INF -INF 0.0000 0.0000 -4.2700	INF INF 10.0000 10.0000 4.2700	• • • •
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS3] S Excess Field Fraction [R S Scaling Factor [RNMS] S Vertical Dipole Factor [V S Vertical Gradient Factor	(R) 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 0.000000 (R) 0.000000 (NP) 0.000000	1/m**2 1/m**3	-INF -INF 0.0000 0.0000 -4.2700 0.0000	INF INF 10.0000 10.0000 4.2700 10.0000	0 0 0 0 0
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS] S Excess Field Fraction [R S Scaling Factor [RNMS] S Vertical Dipole Factor [V S Vertical Gradient Factor S Vertical Sextupole [EPSI	0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 (R) 0.00000 (NP) 0.00000 2) 0.00000	1/m**2 1/m**3 1/m**3	-INF -INF 0.0000 0.0000 -4.2700 0.0000 -1.0000	INF INF 10.0000 10.0000 4.2700 10.0000 1.0000	0 0 0 0 0 0
		S Exit Pole-Face Curva	S 2nd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS] S 3rd Order Field [EPS3] S Excess Field Fraction [R S Scaling Factor [RNMS] S Vertical Dipole Factor [V S Vertical Gradient Factor S Vertical Sextupole [EPS4	0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 (INP) 0.00000 P) 0.00000	1/m**2 1/m**3 1/m**2	-INF 0.0000 0.0000 -4.2700 0.0000 -1.0000	INF INF 10.0000 10.0000 4.2700 10.0000 1.0000	0 0 0 0 0 0

Figure 17. Tab Panels in the Special Piece Window.

The Special Piece is provided for the definition of location specific special parameters that can be used to change TRANSPORT System, Floor Coordinate, Fringe Field and Expansion Parameters. Table 2 list the Special Parameters and the corresponding TRANSPORT keywords.


Special Piece Parameter	TRANSPORT
-	Keyword
System Parameters	
System Length	LENGTH
Reference Trajectory Momentum	PO
Magnetic Field Reference Momentum	PREF
Particle Mass	PMASS
Tilt to Focal Plane	FOTILT
Floor Coordinate Parameters	
Horizontal Location	XBEGIN
Vertical Location	YBEGIN
Longitudinal Location	ZBEGIN
Y-Axis Angle	YAW
X-Axis Angle	PITCH
Fringe Field Parameters	
Horizontal Half-Width	HWIDTH
Half Pole Spacing	HGAP
Orbit Displacement Integral	FINT0
Fringe Field Factor K1	FINT
Fringe Field Factor K2	FINT2
Entrance Pole-Face Curvature	H1
Exit Pole-Face Curvature	H2
Expansion Parameters	
Second-Order Field	EPS
Third-Order Field	EPS3
Excess Field Fraction	RMPS
Field Scaling Factor	RNMS
Vertical Dipole Factor	VR
Vertical Gradient Factor	NP
Vertical Sextupole Factor	EPSP

 Table 2. Special Piece Parameters and Keywords.

Special Pieces must precede any element(s) to which they apply. Once a Special Parameter has been defined for a location in the beamline model, it will apply to all succeeding elements that are the appropriate type unless reset to a new value.

PBO Lab will only use Special Parameters that have been defined by a Symbolic Parameter Name in the parameters' Special Parameter Settings Window.

Note that the Fringe Field Factor K2 (FINT2) is no longer used by TRANSPORT, but is included for compatibility with older versions.

Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for a description of individual special parameters.

The Special Piece can be placed anywhere in the beamline by dragging the icon from the Palette Bar of the Document Window and inserting it at the desired location in the beamline model. Special Pieces on the Work Space are ignored when generating special instructions (SPEC cards) in the TRANSPORT input file. Special Pieces must precede any element(s) to which they apply. Once a Special Parameter has been defined at a specific location in the beamline, it will apply to all succeeding elements of the appropriate type unless reset to a new value.

Special Pieces on the Work Space are ignored when generating special instructions (SPEC cards) in the TRANSPORT input file.



Only Special Parameters that have been defined by a Symbolic Parameter Name in the parameters' Special Parameter Settings Window will be used by TRANSPORT.

Copying Special Pieces will duplicate any Symbolic Parameter Names and may result in unintended consequences.

A single Special Piece may be used to define multiple Special Parameters for a specific location in the beamline. Multiple Special Pieces can also be placed at different locations in the beamline to redefine a single Special Parameter. However, PBO Lab will only use Special Parameters that have been defined by a Symbolic Parameter Name in the parameter's Special Parameter Settings Window, as illustrated in Figure 18. Special Parameters should be defined with unique Parameter Names, particularly when the same Special Parameter is defined at different locations in the beamline model, otherwise the last non-unique Parameter Name and Value will be used for each Special Parameter defined by that Name. Copying a Special Parameter Piece will also copy any Special Parameter Settings including Symbolic Parameter Names. When a Special Piece is copied, care should be taken to assign unique Symbolic Parameter Names.

	Special							×	
	Energy	nergy							
	System	System Floor Fringes Expansions Turtle				Turtle			
	Parameters		Value	Unit	s	L	imits		
	S System Length	[LENGTH]	0.000000	m	•	-INF	INF	•	
	SReference Tra	j. Mom [P0]	0.061295	GeV/c		0.0000	1.00e+007	•	
	S Mag Field Ref.	Mom [PREF]	0.000000	GeV/c		0.0000	1.00e+007	•	
	S Particle Mass [PMASS]	0.000000	Me∨	•	0.5110	2.22e+005	•	
	S Tilt to Focal Pla	ne (FOTILT)	0.000000	Degrees	•	-180.0000	180.0000	•	
	Comments:	50	ecial Paramete	er Settinas -	- Referen	ce Traiec	tory Momen	ll Itum	P
			EC - Reference Symbolic Param	Trajectory Mo neter Name:	omentum — Imoment	tum			
			Tra	ansport		- <u>1</u>		Optimizer	
Special Parameters must be de Symbolic Parameter Name in Parameter Settings Window that using the parameter's "S-1	efined by a the Special t is accessed Button"		C Reference Tra	ajectory Mome	ntum = 0.0	061295		1	
) Import Parame	ter				Imome	anum 🔽

Figure 18. Defining a Symbolic Parameter Name for a Special Parameter.

Refer to the following Chapter for a description of the Special Parameter Settings Window.

PBO Lab^w 2.0

Special Parameter Settings

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



4. Special Parameter Settings

Many Piece Parameters support application-specific special parameter settings that are accessed with the Special Parameter Settings Buttons ("S-Buttons") located next to each parameter in PBO Lab Piece Windows. The S-Buttons open a Special Parameter Settings Window ("S-Window") for the associated Piece Parameter.

To access special parameter settings, select the TRANSPORT Application Context in the Document Window Button Bar and open a Piece Window by doubleclicking the Piece icon on the Work Space or Model Space. Then click on the S-Button for the desired parameter as illustrated in Figure 19 below. Refer to the Piece Window Section in the PBO Lab User Manual for a complete description of the Piece Window user interface.

Access Special Parameter Settings Windows with the S-Button to the left of the desired parameter in the Piece Window.

			Se	elect the TRAN	SPORT A	Application	Context		
	PBO-Lab - Example	B - Modified.pbol *		in the Docum	nent Wind	low Butto	n Bar		_ 🗆 🗙
	<u>Eile Edit View C</u> omma	nds <u>Tools</u> Tutoria <u>l</u>							
(í d et	×000	ð ≊77 ¤	1				
		Globals	Trac	ing/Tracking	Floor	^r Coordinates			
	Partici	e Charge	1	е	1	93 🗢			
	Partic	e Mass	1875.000000	Me∨ ▼	0.5110 2.22	2e+005 🔹			
	Beam	Energy	2.000000	MeV V	0.0010 1.00	De+010	Double-Cli	ck Piece Ico	ons to
2	2 Quadrupole				X 1.0	_{0e-007} O	pen Individ	lual Piece W	'indows
E	nergy Tutorial				3.00	De+004 •			
Ē	Element	Fringe Field	Geometry	Location	1	0.0000			
	Quadrupole Strepdth	Field Overfield					_		
-	B (<u> </u>						
-	Parameters		Units	Limits					
	Mensetia Cield at Dala Tin	0.096000 m		4.0700 4.0700	ĭ − _	.	╏╷┝┯━╽╷┝╸	- - 52 -	
	s Magnetic Field at Pole Tip	2.650000 kG	<u> </u>	-4.2700 4.2700	<u>+</u>	Drift)rift Quad	Final
	Aperture Radius	0.010000 m		0.0090 0.5000	۲-6	DRFT-7 QD-	4 DRFT-8 DF	RFT-9 HFQD I	FINAL
77	S Magnetic-Field Gradient	2.650000 kG/	/cm 🔽	-4.2700 4.2700	•				
	Quadrupole Coefficient K1	91.710733 1/m*	*2 -	⁻¹ 🙀 Special Parame	ter Settings	- Magnetic-F	ield Gradient		×
	S Rotation (Roll) Angle	0.000000 Deg	grees 💌 -	-1 QD-4 - Magnetic	-Field Gradient				
	5 Thin Lens Focal Length	0.113582 m		Symbolic Para	ameter Name:	VARY4			
	Comments:			-					
	QD-4			Transport	M	arylie	Trace3D	Op	timizer
				C Magnetic-Fie	ld Gradient =	265.000000 kG	ə/m		
				Fitting Variat	ole: 🖂	RY4			
Specia	al Parameter Settings	s are accessed w	vith the	C Algebraic Ex	pression:			VARY1	v
Specia next to	al Parameter Settings o each parameter in P	("S") Buttons BO Lab Piece V	located Vindows	C Import Param	neter				

Figure 19. Opening a Special Parameter Settings Window.



Special parameter settings will be inactive for parameters that are not in the selected parameter set.

Special Parameter Settings Windows contain tab panels for the installed PBO Lab Application Modules.

Special Parameter Settings are available for native TRANSPORT inputs that are supported as Fitting Variables or Algebraic Expressions.

All of the special parameter settings for a PBO Lab beamline model are saved from the Document Window with the Save or Save As commands in the File Menu.

Many PBO Lab Pieces have multiple parameter sets that can be used to specify input parameters. The different parameter sets are accessed with a pop-up control at the top of the Piece Window. The S-Buttons will be inactive for parameters that are not included in the current parameter set. For example, in the Quadrupole Piece Window shown in Figure 19, the Quadrupole Strength pop-up specifies the Field Gradient parameter set. Only the three native TRANSPORT parameters for this set (Length, Field Gradient and Roll Angle) can be selected for special parameter settings. The native parameters are indicated with green dots on the right edge of the Piece Window. In order to select special settings for the Aperture Radius parameter, the Field and Aperture parameter set needs to be selected in the Quadrupole Strength pop-up. Refer to the Piece Window Section in the main PBO Lab User Manual for a description of multiple parameter sets.

The bottom half of the S-Window contains tab panels that provide access to application-specific options for the different PBO Lab Application Modules. Your S-Windows will include tab panels for any installed Application Modules. However, some Application Modules may not support special settings for a parameter and therefore will not have a tab panel in the S-Window.

When the TRANSPORT Application Module is installed, there will be a Transport tab panel in the Special Parameter Settings Window if that parameter is a native TRANSPORT input and it is supported as a Fitting Variable or Algebraic Expression by the TRANSPORT program. Otherwise there will not be a Transport tab panel in the S-Window.

Special Parameter Settings are saved with the beamline model document. The special parameter settings for TRANSPORT include selecting a parameter as a Fitting Variable or defining a parameter with an Algebraic Expression or selecting it as an Import Parameter. Refer to the Transport Parameter Settings Section in this Chapter for a description of the different parameter settings.



Creating a copy of a Piece with special parameter settings will also copy those settings. For example if a Piece Parameter is defined by a user-specified Parameter Name and that Piece is copied in the beamline, then there would be two parameters defined by the same Parameter Name. Both instances of the Parameter Name will be sent to TRANSPORT but the value for the first parameter will be used when the second parameter is encountered. This is also true for the initial values of Fitting Variables defined with identical Parameter Names. If there are duplicate Fitting Variable Names then the initial value of the first instance will be the initial value for all instances of the Variable with the same Symbolic Name. Copying Pieces that have Parameter Algebraic Expressions will duplicate those expressions on the copied Piece but otherwise present no difficulties. In some cases, it is desirable to use multiple Pieces with parameters that are defined by the same Parameter Name. However, if this is not the desired result, the Parameter Name will need to be changed to a unique name after making a copy of a Piece that includes special parameter settings. An alternative to copying Pieces that are to be represented with parameters that are defined with the same special parameter settings is to create an Alias Piece. An Alias Piece will maintain a persistent link to the original Piece so that any changes to the original are automatically reflected in the Alias. The Alias Piece also supports user specified deviations from the original Piece parameters without duplicating redundant data. Refer to the Alias Piece Section in the main PBO Lab User Manual for a discussion of Alias Pieces.

Copying Pieces with special parameter settings will duplicate Parameter Names and may result in unintended consequences.

An alternative to copying a Piece is to create an Alias Piece that will maintain a persistent link with the original Piece and will automatically reflect any changes in the original Piece Parameters.



The Parameter Name specified in the top panel of the S-Window is application-independent. The same Parameter Name is used for all installed Application Modules.

Using a Symbolic Parameter Name that is identical to a Piece comment may cause unintended results. The top panel of the S-Window (Figure 20) is applicationindependent and displays the Piece Comment (Label) along with the name of the selected parameter. The Symbolic Parameter Name input field is applicationindependent and provides for a user-specified Symbolic Parameter Name to be defined for the parameter. When required, a default Parameter Name will be generated if a name has not been entered in the field at the top of the S-Window. The same Parameter Name is used for all installed Application Modules.

Symbolic Parameter Names



Figure 20. Special Parameter Settings Window.

Parameter Names can be used in Parameter Algebraic Expressions specified for other Piece Parameters as described in the Parameter Algebraic Expressions Section of this Chapter.

Symbolic Parameter Names used in the beamline model sould be unique. To define multiple parameters with the same value, define one parameter with a unique name and define the other parameters as Algebraic Expressions of that name. A Symbolic Parameter Name is required when the parameter is selected as a Fitting Variable or Import Parameter in the Transport tab panel. However, Parameter Names can also be used for defining other parameters in terms of the named parameter even though the named parameter may not be selected as a Fitting Variable, i.e. the parameter is treated as a numerical constant defined by a symbolic name. When a Parameter Name has been specified, there will be a red "S" on the S-Button in the Piece Window and the Parameter Name may then be used in Parameter Algebraic Expressions for other Piece Parameters.



Transport Parameter Settings

The Transport tab panel in the Special Parameter Settings Window has four radio buttons for specifying the associated parameter as: a numerical Value, a Fitting Variable, an Algebraic Expression or an Import Parameter. These choices are exclusive. A parameter can only be defined by one of these special parameter settings, although the same Symbolic Parameter Name is used for all settings and for all Application Modules.

The first radio button in the Transport tab panel is the default selection. It indicates that the parameter is defined by the numerical Value entered in the Piece Window, i.e. there are no special settings currently selected for the parameter. The parameter may be defined with a Symbolic Parameter Name, although it is not required for this selection. If a Parameter Name is defined then that name will be used to create a symbolic constant in the Transport Input file. The parameter will be defined with that Parameter Name and the Name may then be used to define Algebraic Expressions for other Piece Parameters.

The second radio button in the Transport tab panel selects the parameter as a Transport Fitting Variable using the Symbolic Parameter Name as described in the TRANSPORT Fitting Chapter of this Supplement.

The third radio button selects the parameter as an Algebraic Expression. With this selection, the input field and pop-up to the right of the radio button are activated. The following Section describes the use of Parameter Algebraic Expressions.

The last radio button in the Transport tab panel selects the parameter as an Import Parameter. This selection works in conjunction with the PBO Lab External Data Interface Tools. The import option is not specific to TRANSPORT, but selecting an Import Parameter excludes that parameter as a Fitting Variable or Algebraic Expression. Refer to the External Data Interface Section in the PBO Lab User Manual for a description of Import Parameters. Parameters that have been given Symbolic Parameter Names are defined with those Names in the Transport Input file even when the Parameter has not been selected as a Fitting Variable or an Algebraic Expression.

Refer to the Fitting Chapter in this Supplement for a discussion of Fitting Variables.

Refer to the following Section for a description of Parameter Algebraic Expressions.

Refer to the External Data Interface Section in the main PBO Lab User Manual for a description of the Import Parameter special parameter setting.



Symbolic Parameter Names may be defined for Piece Parameters, as described in the previous Sections, and used in Algebraic Expressions for other Piece Parameters.

Parameter Algebraic Expressions are not evaluated until TRANSPORT is executed.

Parameter Algebraic Expressions

The TRANSPORT Application Module supports the definition of Piece Parameters using Algebraic Expressions. Parameter Algebraic Expressions are specified in the Special Parameter Settings Window. To define an Algebraic Expression for a Piece Parameter, select the corresponding radio button in the parameters' Special Parameter Settings Window as illustrated in Figure 21. With this selection, the input field and pop-up to the right of the radio button are activated. An algebraic expression is entered in the input field, which will then be used to define the parameter in the Transport Input file. The pop-up to the right of the input field contains a list of all the Piece Parameters in the beamline model that have been given Symbolic Parameter Names in addition to Location Specific Stored Parameters. A Parameter Algebraic Expression can be defined in terms of these Symbolic Parameter Names as well as other TRANSPORT program variables and symbolic constants. Note that a Parameter Algebraic Expression is not evaluated when it is defined in the S-Window. Algebraic Expressions are evaluated when TRANSPORT executed.



Figure 21. Parameter Algebraic Expressions.

40



Parameter Algebraic Expressions may be defined in terms of user-specified Parameter Names, Fitting Variables, Stored Parameters and may also contain TRANSPORT symbolic constants including those listed in Table 3 below. Named Piece Parameters, Fitting Variables and Stored Parameters may be used to define Parameter Algebraic Expressions.

TRANSPORT	Numerical	
Keyword	Value	Units
PI	3.12159265358979323	
TWOPI	2.0*PI	
DEGRAD	180.0/PI	
RADDEG	PI/180.0	
Е	2.718281828459045	
EMASS	0.510099906E-03	GeV
PMASS	0.93827231	GeV
CLIGHT	2.99792458E+08	m/s
MTOIN	0.0254	
INTOM	1.0/MTOIN	

Table 3 TRANSPORT Symbolic Constants.

Parameter Algebraic Expressions may include TRANSPORT symbolic constants. Additional symbolic constants can be defined by the user with the Param Piece.

Additional symbolic constants can be defined by the user with the Param Piece (refer to the Parameter Piece Section in this Chapter). User-specified Parameter Names should not use the names that are reserved by TRANSPORT for symbolic constants.

There are a variety of mathematical operators and functions that can be used in Parameter Expressions. These are listed in Table 4 with the TRANSPORT keyword or symbol.

Table 4 Operations for Algebraic Expressions.

Keyword-	Operation	Keyword-	Operation
Symbol		Symbol	
+	Addition	*	Multiplication
-	Subtraction	/	Division
SIN	Sine	COS	Cosine
SINH	Hyperbolic Sine	COSH	Hyperbolic Cosine
ASIN	Inverse Sine	ACOS	Inverse Cosine
SQRT	Square Root	ALOG	Natural Log
EXP	Exponential		

A variety of mathematical operators and functions may be used in Parameter Algebraic Expressions.



Algebraic Expressions specified by the user are saved even when the parameters are not set to use the expression.

PBO Lab 2.0 User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Module

All of the special parameter settings for a PBO Lab beamline model are saved from the Document Window using the Save or Save As commands in the File Menu. An Algebraic Expression for a parameter will be saved with the beamline model document even when it is not selected in the Special Parameter Settings Window. For example, you may define a parameter with an Algebraic Expression and run TRANSPORT to evaluate the expression. You could then update the beamline model and change the special parameter setting to use that value instead of having TRANSPORT reevaluate the Algebraic Expression on each execution. The expression will still be saved with the beamline model even though it is not active.



Figure 22. Parameter Algebraic Expressions.



Figure 22 on the previous page illustrates a simple example of a Parameter Algebraic Expression. The first S-Window defines a Parameter Name: "LD1" for the Effective Length of a Drift Piece. The second S-Window defines another Drift Length parameter with the Parameter Name: "LD2", which is selected as a TRANSPORT Fitting Variable. The last S-Window in Figure 22 defines one more Drift Length Parameter as an Algebraic Expression of Named Parameters. The value of this parameter will be calculated by Q ANSPORT using the algebraic expression: (LD1 + LD2) / 2.

Updating Parameter Expressions

Parameter Algebraic Expressions are evaluated when TRANSPORT is executed. The resulting values are presented in the PBO Lab Update Window following the execution of TRANSPORT. The Update Window, shown in Figure 23, provides options to individually update selected parameters or to update all of the parameters at once. The Update Window also contains an update panel for any Parameters used as Fitting Variables. There are separate Update Buttons for Variable Parameters and Parameter Expressions in the Update Window. Both the Variable Parameters and Parameter Expressions panels have scroll bars to access additional entries that may not be visible. Fitting Variables are described in Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting.

The Expression Parameters panel in the Update Window has six columns. The user-specified Piece Label (Comment) is in the first column, the second column contains the name of the parameter as it appears in the Piece Window. The third column contains the Parameter Algebraic Expression. The Value column contains the current numerical value of the parameter and the Update column contains the new value computed by TRANSPORT, which will be assigned when the parameter is updated in the beamline model. If a parameter is not specifically updated, then the original value will be unchanged in the beamline model. The last column shows the units for each parameter. Parameter Algebraic Expressions are evaluated when TRANSPORT is executed. An Update Window is automatically opened for modifying Parameter Expression Values in the beamline model.

Refer to Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting for an explanation of Fitting Variables in the Update Window.

If a Parameter Algebraic Expression is not specifically updated in the Update Window, then the original value will be unchanged in the beamline model.





Figure 23. Parameter Update Window.

Double-clicking a parameter in the Update Window will open the associated Piece Window for that parameter. The Update Window is automatically opened after execution of TRANSPORT. The Variables and Expressions do not have to be updated immediately. However, if the Update Window is closed prior to updating any parameters then TRANSPORT will have to be run again to access the Update Window. The Update Window can be left open without updating parameters, in order to examine other output results, and then parameters can be updated in the beamline model by bringing the Update Window to the foreground again. The Update Window may also be used to locate the Pieces in the beamline model with Variable Parameters or Parameter Expressions. Double-clicking an entry in the Update Window will open the associated Piece Window for the selected parameter.



Parameters & Expressions List Windows

PBO Lab provides application-specific interactive List Windows that organize related data for the entire beamline model. The Named Parameters List Window contains a list of Piece Parameters that have been given Symbolic Parameter Names. Figure 24 illustrates opening the Named Parameters Window from the TRANSPORT Commands Menu. The Named Parameters List Window can be used to quickly access Named Parameters. Doubleclicking an entry in the window will open the associated Piece Window in the beamline model.

PBO Lab provides application-specific interactive List Windows that organize related data for the entire beamline model.



Figure 24. Named Parameters List Window.



The header at the top of all List Windows can be used to adjust the width of each column in the window.

Both Parameter Variables and Transport Fitting Variables are contained in the Named Parameters List Window.

A Parameter (Param) Piece can be created for selected parameters in the List Window by using the Create Param Piece Button.

List windows include entries from Pieces in the Model Space and from the Work Space. The header at the top of all List Windows can be used to adjust the width of each column in the window. To resize a column, place the mouse over the divider line in the column header. When the arrow turns into a cross-hair, resize by holding the mouse button down while dragging horizontally. The List Windows themselves can also be resized to accommodate the number of entries and desired column widths.

Any Named Parameters that are selected as TRANSPORT Fitting Variables are indicated with an "X" in the Fit column of the List Window as illustrated in Figure 24. Named Parameters can be easily selected (and unselected) as Fitting Variables by clicking in the "Fit" column of the List Window.

A Param Piece can be created for selected parameters in the List Window by using the Create Param Piece Button. To create a Param Piece, select a parameter by clicking on the entry in the List Window. (Hold down the shift key to select multiple parameters.) Then use the Create Param Piece Button at the top of the window to generate a Param Piece on the Work Space of the Document Window. PBO Lab will automatically enter the Parameter Value in the Param Piece and the Symbolic Parameter Name in the S-Window for each parameter selected in the List Window. The Param Piece is described in the Parameter Piece Section of Chapter 3: Beamline Elements.

List windows include entries from Pieces in the Model Space and from the Work Space. This provides quick access to all Pieces that have special parameter settings. Pieces on the Work Space that have special parameter settings will also be included in the Transport Input file. This allows Pieces in the beamline model to reference Named Parameters from the Work Space in the definition of Parameter Algebraic Expressions.



A List Window is also provided for Stored Output Parameters that have been specified with Marker Pieces at specific locations in the beamline model. The Stored Parameters List Window supports features that are similar to the Named Parameters List Window and is opened from the List Windows Submenu in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu. Refer to the Stored Parameters List Window sub-section in the Marker Piece Section of Chapter 3: Beamline Elements.

PBO Lab also provides List Windows for Parameter Algebraic Expressions and for Fitting Constraint Expressions. These windows support the same features as the Named Parameters and Stored Parameters List Windows and are also accessed from the List Windows Submenu in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu.

Figure 25 illustrates the Parameter Algebraic Expressions and Fitting Constraint Expressions List Windows. As with the other List Windows, the window itself, as well as individual columns, can be resized. Double-clicking an entry will open the associated Piece Window for Algebraic Expressions and the associated Marker Piece Window for Constraint Expressions. Refer to Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting for further description of these List Windows. PBO Lab also provides a List Window for location-specific Stored Parameters in the beamline model. The Stored Parameters List Window is described in a sub-section of the Marker Piece Section in Chapter 3: Beamline Elements.

PBO Lab also provides List Windows for Parameter Algebraic Expressions and Fitting Constraint Expressions.

Double-clicking an entry in the Parameter Algebraic Expressions List Window will open the associated Piece Window for that parameter.



Figure 25. Parameter Expressions and Fitting Constraints List Windows.



This page is intentionally blank.

PBO Lab[®] 2.0

TRANSPORT Menus

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



5. TRANSPORT Menus

Application-specific commands are accessed from Submenus in the PBO Lab Commands Menu and View Menu at the top of the Document Window. When the TRANSPORT Application Module is installed, both the Commands Menu and the View Menu will contain Submenus for the TRANSPORT application, in addition to any other installed PBO Lab Application Modules. This Chapter includes an outline of the TRANSPORT Menus, as well as references to other Chapters in this Supplement that provide more detailed descriptions of specific menu commands.

TRANSPORT Commands Menu

The TRANSPORT Commands Menu is illustrated in Figure 26 and contains several options for specifying output and executing the TRANSPORT Application Module.

Submenus for the TRANSPORT Application Module (as well as any other installed PBO Lab Application Modules) are found in both the Commands and View Menus of the Document Window.



Figure 26. PBO Lab Commands Menu for TRANSPORT Module.

The TRANSPORT Commands Menu is divided into six groups of commands. The first group contains the two primary commands for specifying output and running TRANSPORT. The second group provides three additional commands for setting up and running Transport Input files. These are described in the following Execution Commands Section.

The Write Input & Run Transport command automatically creates and executes the Transport Input file which contains all the inputs required by TRANSPORT.



TRANSPORT is executed from the Commands Menu using the Write Input & Run Transport Command. TRANSPORT reads and executes an input file that is generated by PBO Lab for the beamline in the Model Space of the Document Window.

The Write Input & Run Transport Command provides two options that can be used to run TRANSPORT with or without Fitting.

Execution Commands

The first command in the Commands Menu is used to run TRANSPORT and the second command is used to specify plot data output. The Write Input & Run Transport Submenu provides two options that can be used to write a Transport Input file for the beamline defined on the Model Space and execute the TRANSPORT program. TRANSPORT reads and executes the instructions contained in the MAD (Methodical Accelerator Design) formatted input file that is generated by PBO Lab. Figure 1 in the Getting Started Chapter illustrates an example using one of these commands.

The Write Input & Run Transport Submenu includes two options for running TRANSPORT as illustrated in Figure 27. The first includes fitting and the second excludes fitting. The only difference between these two options is that PBO Lab will include the FIT instruction in the native Transport Input file for the first case and will exclude the FIT instruction for the second case. This allows any fitting variables and constraints that have been defined by the user to remain part of the model, without actually having to run the fitting procedure every time TRANSPORT is executed. Refer to the Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting for a description of setting up and executing a TRANSPORT fitting problem.



Figure 27. Write Input & Run Transport Submenu.

The Transport Plot Specification command opens the Transport Plot Specification Window, which is used to select a variety of TRANSPORT output parameters that will be written to the Transport Plot file. The Transport Plot Specifications are discussed separately in the Plot Specifications Chapter.

The second group of commands in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu contains items to assist the user in directly editing the Transport Input file. With these commands, the native TRANSPORT input may be generated from the PBO Lab beamline model without automatically executing the TRANSPORT application. These commands are useful for implementing TRANSPORT instructions which may not be directly supported by the PBO Lab user interface. Changes made to the Transport Input file are not retained in the PBO Lab model data and the Transport Input file will be over written with subsequent Write Input & Run or Write Input & View commands.

These commands can also be used to evaluate any incompatibilities between TRANSPORT input files that were not generated with PBO Lab. For example, an older TRANSPORT input deck can be pasted into the Text Edit Window that is opened with the View 'Transport Input' File command. After saving the new Transport Input file with the Save command in the Text Edit Window, this file can then be executed with the Run 'Transport Input' File command. PBO Lab will not generate a new input file when using this command, instead the current Transport Input file will be used to execute the TRANSPORT program. Any incompatibilities will be noted in the Transport Output file. The input can then be corrected before Importing the file into PBO Lab in order to build a PBO Lab beamline model from the native TRANSPORT deck.

Text files can also be edited by using the Open Scratch File Command in the View Menu of the Document Window. This command opens an empty Text Edit Window. The Open Command in the File Menu of the Text Edit Window can be used to open any existing text file. The Plot Specification command is used to set up options for different types of graphic output and must be set prior to running TRANSPORT.

The Transport Input file may be edited and saved by the user. TRANSPORT will read and execute the edited file (errors and all!) when the Run 'Transport Input' File command is selected.

PBO Lab will not generate a new input file when using the Run 'Transport Input' File command. Instead the current Transport Input file will be used to execute the TRANSPORT program.







The different commands that generate the Transport Input file and execute TRANSPORT result in a rapid data flow which is transparent to the user. Each of these commands involves a few well defined steps which are summarized here.

(1.) Each time they are selected, the following PBO Lab commands write a new Transport Input file for the beamline in the Model Space of the Document Window, together with the Options settings, Plot Specifications and Fitting Constraints:

Write Input & Run Transport Write Input & View

The first command will automatically write the input file and execute TRANSPORT. The second command will write the input file and display it in a Text Edit Window.

(2.) The following PBO Lab command will open the the most recent Transport Input file without generating new input from the beamline model:

View 'Transport Input' File

(3.) The following PBO Lab command executes the most recent Transport Input file, created by either (1.) or (2.) above:

Run 'Transport Input' File

The Transport Input file is not updated with any changes made from the interface, this command simply executes an existing Transport Input file.

Other PBO Lab commands or beamline construction tasks may also cause a Transport Input file to be generated, thus overwriting any existing file. For example, creating a Matrix Piece from a selection of Pieces in the beamline model will cause an input file to be generated, overwriting any existing file. This input file is executed by TRANSPORT and any existing output files are overwritten as well. All this is transparent to the user. When the Make Matrix Piece Command is selected, the Matrix Piece simply appears on the Work Space of the Document Window.

When a Transport Input file is generated, the previous input file is overwritten.

When TRANSPORT is executed, the previous output files are overwritten.

If the Transport Input file does not exist, then the Run 'Transport Input' File command will not generate any output.

Some of the PBO Lab commands and beamline construction tasks may require a Transport Input file to be generated, thus overwriting any existing file.



The third and forth groups of commands in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu contain commands for creating and displaying matrices. The first two commands in the third group are used for displaying the TRANSPORT R-Matrix and Beam Sigma Matrix. The forth group contains one command that is used to create a Matrix Piece for a selection of beamline elements. These commands are described separately in Chapter 6: Displaying and Creating Matrices.

List Window Commands

The fifth group of commands in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu contains commands for displaying user specified Named Parameters, Parameter Expressions, Storage Parameters, Fitting Variables and Fitting Constraints for the entire beamline.

The List Windows Submenu provides commands to open several PBO Lab List Windows as illustrated in Figure 28. Each of the List Windows organize related data for all of the Pieces in the beamline model and on the Work Space.



List Windows organize related data for all of the pieces in the beamline model and on the Work Space.



Figure 28. List Windows for TRANSPORT are Accessed from the List Windows Submenu in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu.





List Windows are provided for Stored Parameters, Named Parameters, Parameter Expressions and Fitting Constraint Expressions.

The TRANSPORT Options Window is described in Chapter 7: TRANSPORT Options.

The TRANSPORT Submenu in the View Menu of the Document Window contains several commands to open TRANSPORT I/O files. List Windows are provided for Stored Parameters, Named Parameters, Parameter Expressions and Fitting Constraint Expressions. The Stored Parameters List Window is described in the Marker Piece Section of the Beamline Elements Chapter. The Named Parameters List Window and the Parameter Expressions List Window are described in the Parameters and Expressions List Windows Section of the Special Parameter Settings Chapter. The Fitting Constraint Expressions List Window is described in Chapter 9: TRANSPORT Fitting.

Options Command

The last group in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu contains one command. The Option Command is used to access TRANSPORT Options for the Order of Calculation and Output Result in addition to parameters for specifying data to be written to the Transport output files. These commands are discussed separately in Chapter 7: TRANSPORT Options.

TRANSPORT View Menu

The View Menu in the Document Window contains Submenus for any installed PBO Lab Modules. The TRANSPORT Submenu is illustrated in Figure 29 and contains several commands to open input, output, diagnostic and auxiliary files for the TRANSPORT Application Module.



Figure 29. PBO Lab View Menu for TRANSPORT Module.

The View Menu commands do not execute TRANSPORT or cause new I/O files to be generated. These commands simply open the existing input, output and diagnostic files that have already been generated from a previous TRANSPORT run.

Each of the View Menu commands opens the associated file in a PBO Lab Text Edit Window. These windows provide standard editing capabilities and typical File, Edit and Font Menus. The Save As command in the File Menu of Text Edit Windows can be used to save any of the files using a different name. Since these files will be overwritten with the next execution of TRANSPORT, they should be saved with a different name if the data is to be retained. Renamed Text Edit Windows can remain open for comparison with other results. However, if the file is not renamed and the window is left open the new data from a subsequent TRANSPORT run will overwrite the existing data in the open window.

There are five native TRANSPORT I/O files that can be accessed from the TRANSPORT View Submenu. These include the standard input and output files, in addition to the plot, punch and data files. The Transport Input file is the native input that is generated by PBO Lab for the beamline on the Model Space. The Transport Output file is the main output file generated with the execution of TRANSPORT. The Transport Plot file is the raw data generated by TRANSPORT and plotted by PBO Lab. The Transport Data file is an additional diagnostic output file that is provided for PBO Lab Professional users. This file may be used to add diagnostic write statements to the TRANSPORT FORTRAN source code. The Transport Punch file contains user-specified output data that is selected in the Punch File Options tab panel in the TRANSPORT Options Window. Refer to the Output and Options Punch File Section in Chapter 7: **TRANSPORT** Options.

The View Menu commands do not execute TRANSPORT or cause new I/O files to be generated.

The Save As command in the File Menu of Text Edit Windows can be used to save any of the files using a different name.





The Auxiliary Files Submenu contains commands to view several Auxiliary input files that can be generated by TRANSPORT. These files are not generated unless they have been selected in the Output File Options tab panel in the TRANSPORT Options Window. Refer to the Output File Options Section in Chapter 7: TRANSPORT Options.

The last command in the TRANSPORT View Submenu is itself a Submenu for several Auxiliary input files that can be generated by TRANSPORT. The Auxiliary Submenu is illustrated in Figure 30. Table 5 lists the different Auxiliary files that can be generated for a beamline model. These files are not generated unless they have been selected in the Output File Options tab panel in the TRANSPORT Options Window. Refer to the Output File Options Section in Chapter 7: TRANSPORT Options. If an auxiliary file does not exist (has not been previously generated), then an alert will be given. If an auxiliary file has been previously generated, it will be opened with the associated View command in a PBO Lab Text Edit Window. Any of the Auxiliary files can be renamed with the Save As command in the File Menu of the Text Edit Window. Auxiliary files are named with the root name "Auxiliary.tout". Each file type is then given its' own extension which is appended to the root name. If a file of the same name exists when a new file is generated, then it will be overwritten with the new file.

Table 5. Auxiliary	Files	Generated	by	TRA	ANSP	ORT
			~			

Keyword	Description
MAD	Methodical Accelerator Definition Input File
TRANSPORT	TRANSPORT Input File
LATDEF	Lattice Definition Input File
STRUCT	STRUCT Input File
ACAD	Autocad Input File



•

Figure 30. View Menu Commands to Open Auxiliary Files.

PBO Lab ^w 2.0

Displaying & Creating Matrices

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



6. Displaying and Creating Matrices

There are three commands in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu that are used for displaying and creating matrices. These commands are separated into two groups. The first group has two commands for displaying matrix data from the last execution of TRANSPORT. The second group contains one command that is used to execute TRANSPORT in order to create a Matrix Piece for a selection of beamline elements in the Model Space of the Document Window.

Show R-Matrix

The Show R-Matrix Command in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu opens the R-Matrix Window shown in Figure 31. This R-Matrix Window displays the transfer R-Matrix data at the end of the beamline for the last TRANSPORT run executed. No specific options settings are required to generate the data for the R-Matrix Window. However, the Show R-Matrix command will be inactive if TRANSPORT has not been executed.

Creating a Matrix Piece

The Create Matrix Piece button in the Button Bar of the R-Matrix Window is used to generate a Matrix Piece from the R-Matrix data. The Matrix Piece is created on the Work Space of the Document Window as illustrated in Figure 31. The Matrix Piece represents the entire beamline model from the previous TRANSPORT execution that was displayed in the R-Matrix Window and may be used in place of the individual beamline elements. This may speed up calculations for very large models that have particular sections where the parameters are fixed so that Matrix Pieces can be generated and used to replace the individual beamline elements.

The Show R-Matrix Command displays the R-Matrix for the last execution of TRANSPORT.

An unlimited number of R-Matrix Windows may be left open for comparing results from multiple TRANSPORT runs.

Matrix Pieces may be used in a beamline model to replace entire beamline segments with a single R-Matrix representation for that segment.

The Output File Option in the TRANSPORT Options Window that causes TRANSPORT to generate the transverse matrix components in millimeters and milliradians does not effect the R-Matrix Window, which will always display the matrix data in meters and inverse meters.





Figure 31. Creating a Matrix Piece from the Transport R-Matrix Window.



The Show Sigma Matrix Command in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu opens the Output Sigma-Matrix Window as illustrated in Figure 32. This window displays the Output Sigma-Matrix (Beam Matrix) at the end of the beamline from the last TRANSPORT run executed.

There are no specific option settings required to generate the data for the Sigma-Matrix Window. However, the Show Sigma-Matrix Command will be inactive if TRANSPORT has not been executed. An unlimited number of Matrix Windows may be left open for comparing results from multiple TRANSPORT runs.

There are two panels in the Output Sigma-Matrix Window. The top panel shows the TRANSPORT Reduced Sigma-Matrix and the bottom panel shows the full Output Sigma-Matrix in units of meters and radians. The first column of the Reduced Sigma-Matrix display, labeled: Diagonal, represents the half widths of the beam ellipsoid in each of the six beam coordinates. The remaining elements represent the correlation coefficients between coordinates.

Creating a Beam Piece

The Button Bar at the top of the Sigma-Matrix Window provides an option for creating a PBO Lab Beam Piece from the TRANSPORT Output Sigma-Matrix data. The Create Beam Piece button will generate a new Beam Piece and place it on the Work Space of the Document Window as illustrated in Figure 32. The Beam Piece Parameters will be generated for the Sigma Matrix data and Phase Space Ellipse Plots will be displayed in the Beam Piece Window. The Beam Piece can be used in the beamline model or simply left on the Work Space for comparison with subsequent TRANSPORT runs.



The Show Sigma-Matrix Command displays the Sigma-Matrix for the last execution of TRANSPORT.

Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for a description of the Sigma Matrix and Reduced Sigma Matrix formulation.

The Sigma-Matrix Window provides a button for creating a PBO Lab Beam Piece from the TRANSPORT Output Sigma-Matrix data.



PBO-La	b - 4	cell achromat	tic.pbol *					-			
	T .		joois Tutonaj	Write Input and P	Run Transport 🔸						
		TU <u>R</u> TLE	+	Transport <u>P</u> lot Sp	ecification	F=	Eloor Coordinates				
		TRACE 3-D	•	Write Input and V	/iew		93 0				
Sext.		<u>C</u> ompute All	AutoCalcs	<u>R</u> un 'Transport In	nput File Iput' File		e Show Sigr	na Matrix	Command		
		Beam Energy	,	Show R-Matrix			Opens the	Transport	t Output		
Oct.		Beam Curren	t	Show Sigma Matr	ix		Sigma-N	Aatrix Wi	indow		
		Frequency		List Windows	•	3.0000	3.00e+004 O				
Plasma				A.V	🔡 Tran	sport Output	Sigma-Matrix				X
m	T	he Create	Beam Piec	e Button	Create E	leam Piece					
Accel	Jene	Frates a Be	am Piece (Output	Redu	ced Sigma Matri	x, r(i,j)				
	•	Space for t	ma-Matrix	. Output	¥ *		1(x)	2(x')	3(y)	4(y*)	5(z)
Septum				` - ``` - =		Diagonal					
		Beam Centroid	SUBLINE			3.9998 mm	0.135341				
RF Gap	в	EAM CENT	CELL_1	MARK	CELL_ 2 3	4.0000 mm	0.000000	0.000000			
6.0					4	0.1013 mr	0.000000	0.000000	0.159800		
C D					5	0.0187 M	-0.000025	-0.007356	0.000000	0.000000	0.067713
┸╝┛				_/	6	0.2700 R	0.000004	0.014130	0.000000	0.000000	-0.301113
				/							
PBO-La	b - 4	cell achromat	tic.pbol *		- Sigma	a Matrix (i,j) in m 1	eters and radians 2	3	4	5	6
	view		ools luconai വിഹികിയ	المراجع الع	arius i∷` ≊arius						
TRANSPOR	u _					0.000016	5.47e-008	0.000000	0.000000	-1.90e-009	6.88e-008
	-				2	0.000000	0.000000	0.000016	6.47e-008	0.000000	0.000000
Sext.			/ _		4	0.000000	0.000000	6.47e-008	1.03e-008	0.000000	0.000000
		/	Doul	ole Click the	Beam Piec	e to ⁰⁹	-1.39e-008	0.000000	0.000000	0.000351	-0.004892
Oct.				Open the Pie	ce Window	,)08	3.85e-007	0.000000	0.000000	-0.004892	0.072900
		#1 J	Initial Bea	am							
Plasma		Beam	Generato Dist	ibution copy iron	Final Copy non	Outour Tutorial	Correlations Co	mp From Twis	s AutoScale Plots	Set Plot Scales	
		BEAM		Element		1	Centroid and Cu	urrent	<u></u>		
Accel			Particle D	istribution Type	6-D Equivalent L	Jniform	-			x, y (n	im)
	┦┍		Beam Par	ameters	Semi-Axes		Ţ		0.1216		
Septum		\$₽ _ ₩	Paramete		Value	Ilnits		imits	x', y'		
		Beam Centroid	Horizontal	(x)						"	
RF Gap	В	EAM CENT	S Half Bean	n Extent (x)	0.399984	cm	▼ 0.0000	10.0000	• Š	~ (
[AB]			S Half Bean	n Divergence (x')	0.100995	mrad	0.0000	1.00e+004	• -0.121	16	
CD Matrix			S Emittance	(x-x')	0.400245	pi-mm-mrad	0.0000	100.0000		4.8000 0.0	4.8000
		<u> </u>	Vertical (y)		,	,	_				1
			S Half Bean	n Extent (y)	0.400001	cm	• 0.0000	10.0000	•		
			S Half Bean	n Divergence (y')	0.101297	mrad	• 0.0000	1.00e+004	• 324.000	z (mr	n)
			S Emittance	(y-y')	0.399982	pi-mm-mrad	• 0.0000	100.0000	z'		
			Longitudin	al (z)					(mrad)	
			S Half Bean	n Extent (z)	1.872448	cm	• 0.0000	10.0000	• 0	0	
			S Half Mom	entum Spread (z')	27.000001	% Percent	• 0.0000	10.0000	•		
			Emittance	(z-z')	1274.295637	pi-mm-mrad	• 0.0000	1000.0000	-324.000		
			Comments:							2.4694 0.0	22.4694

Figure 32. Creating a Beam Piece from the Output Sigma Matrix Window.



Make Matrix Piece Command

The Make Matrix Piece Command is used to create a Matrix Piece for a selection of pieces in the beamline model. Using a single Matrix Piece to replace a static beamline segment that contains many pieces can significantly speed up calculations for large models. This command is similar to using the Create Matrix Piece button in the Show R-Matrix Window. However, this command operates on a selection of pieces in the beamline model, unlike the R-Matrix Window button, which always creates a Matrix Piece for the entire beamline. The Make Matrix Piece Command in the Commands Menu is also different because TRANSPORT is automatically executed to compute the R-Matrix for the beamline model selection. When creating a Matrix Piece from the Show R-Matrix Window, the R-Matrix data from the last TRANSPORT execution is always used. Refer to the Show R-Matrix Section in this Chapter.

To create a Matrix Piece with the Make Matrix Piece Command, first make a selection of pieces in the beamline model and then select the Make Matrix Piece Command in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu. TRANSPORT will be executed to calculate the R-Matrix for the beamline selection. A Matrix Piece will automatically be generated and placed in the lower left corner of the Work Space as illustrated in Figure 33. The Matrix Piece can then be used to replace the original beamline selection in the Model Space.

The original selection of pieces in the beamline model that are used to create the Matrix Piece are not changed or replaced automatically. Drag a copy of the original selection to the Work Space before deleting these pieces in the beamline because they can not be re-generated from the corresponding Matrix Piece. The Matrix Piece can then be placed in the beamline at the location of the original pieces. This command can also be used to generate an R-Matrix through a specific location in the beamline model for comparison with other results. The Create Matrix Piece Command is used to create a Matrix Piece for a selection of pieces in the beamline model.

A Matrix Piece can also be created for the entire beamline model from the R-Matrix Window. Refer to the Show R-Matrix Section in this Chapter.

To create a Matrix Piece first make a selection of pieces in the beamline model and then select the Make Matrix Piece Command in the TRANSPORT Commands Menu.

The original selection of pieces in the beamline model that are used to create a Matrix Piece are not modified. The Matrix Piece will appear on the Work Space and can then be used to replace the original selection in the beamline model.



PBO Lab 2.0 User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Module

😥 PBO	-Lab) - Untitled.pbol *	_	
File Ed		<u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> ommands <u>T</u> ools Tutorial Commands Tools Tutorial		
TRANS	PORT	IRANSPORT	Write Input and Run Transport	
#]–	TURTLE MARYITE	Transport Plot Specification Floor Coordinates	
Beam		TRACE 3-D	Write Input and View 1 93 Make a selection of Pieces in the b	eamline
	1	Compute All AutoCalcs	Run 'Transport Input' File 0.5110 2.22e+005 model and use the Make Matrix Piece	Command
Drift		Beam Energy	Show R-Matrix 0.0010 1.00e+810 to generate a Matrix Piece on the Wo	ork Space
	1	Beam Current	Show Sigma Matrix 0.0000 1.00e-007 Tor the beamine selection	
Ň.∡ 0uad		Frequency	Make a Matrix Piece 3.0000 3.00e+004 ◆	
	{	Maximum Step Size	List Windows 0.0020 10,0000	
MW		·	Options /	
Solenoid	Į			
S [.] Bend	J	rift Drift Rotate Rectangu	ular Bend Botate Drift Drift Quad Drift Drift Batate Rectangular Bend Botate Drift Drift Drift	- Recto
	1			
R·Bend				
	1			
Bend				
		-		
	- #	PBO-Lab - Untitled.pbol *		
	<u>Fi</u>	ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> ommands <u>T</u> ools	Tutorial	
	(The Make Matrix Piece	Command generates a	tion to the
	M	fatrix Piece for the beam	nline model selection and Work Space prior to replacing it in the	heamline
	pl	laces it in the lower left	corner of the Work Space with the new Matrix Piece	ocumme
		Beam	(Use the View Menu Command or the Ru	utton Bar
		_	$/$ $\langle \bigcirc $	ters panel)
		—	Drift Drift Drift Unit Drift D	when a second se
		Drift		
			SROT VT101 SROT SEMIGHA DRFT PQ2 DRFT SROT PBR3 SRO	от
		Dotenoid		
			📓 🔲 🚛 💭 👘 Matrix Piece	×
		SBend		
		rift Drift Drift	Drift Matrix Drift Rectar CR-Matrix CT-Matrix k: 1 🖉 CU-Matrix k: 1 🚽	1 🔻
		RET DRET DRET	DRFT MAT DRFT R - Matrix Elements R (i i) in meters and 1/meters	
	E F	R·Bend	i: i=1 2 3 4 5 6	
				3617
		Bend	3 0.000021 0.00006 11.115693 8.381269 0.000000 0.010	0084
			4 0.000013 0.000090 0.023756 1.074766 0.000000 0.00	5617
			5 -0.006100 -0.041567 -0.007143 -0.044618 1.000000 0.088	3008
				0000
		/		
			Drag a copy of the Matrix Piece from the Work	
			in the beamline model	

Figure 33. Creating a Matrix Piece for a Beamline Selection.


PBO Lab provides an Output File Option in the TRANSPORT Options Window that causes TRANSPORT to generate the transverse matrix components in millimeters and milliradians. This mixed units representation will only appear in the Transport Output File when this option is selected. The Matrix Piece Window will always display the matrix data in meters and inverse meters regardless of the TRANSPORT Output File Option.

The Matrix Piece Window is described in more detail in the Matrix Piece Section of Chapter 3: Beamline Elements.

The Matrix Piece Window displays the transfer matrices in units of meters, radians and inverse meters, radians regardless of units selection for the Output File in the TRANSPORT Options Window.



This page is intentionally blank.

PBO Lab[®] 2.0

TRANSPORT Options

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



PBO Lab provides several options for specifying parameters which direct TRANSPORT to write data to the Output and Punch files. TRANSPORT options also include parameters for setting the Calculation Order and Output Result for TRANSPORT runs. The Options Window is accessed with the last item in the TRANSPORT Commands menu as illustrated in Figure 34.

All of the TRANSPORT Options are saved with the beamline model in the Document Window when a Save, or a Save As command is executed.



Figure 34. Opening the TRANSPORT Options Window.

TRANSPORT Options are presented in a single window with multiple tab panels for (1) calculation order and output result, (2) printing matrices after every beamline element, (3) printing matrices after the last element, (4) various format options for the Transport Output file, and (5) printing matrices to the Transport Punch file. All of the TRANSPORT Options are saved with the model file using the Save or Save As commands in the File Menu.

TRANSPORT output may also be specified at specific locations in the beamline using Marker Pieces as described in the previous Section.





The TRANSPORT Calculation Order and Output Result are set in the TRANSPORT Options Window.

The order of the Output Result can not be higher then the Calculation Order.

The options in the Order of Calculation Window are saved with the Document using the Save or Save As commands.

Calculation Order & Output Result

The TRANSPORT Application Module integrated with PBO Lab can model optics problems up to the third order. The first tab panel in the TRANSPORT Options Window illustrated in Figure 35, is used to set up the Calculation Order and the Output Result matrices for TRANSPORT.

The Calculation Order represents the order to which the transfer matrices are calculated about the reference trajectory. Calculating to Zero Order simply traces the beam centroid through the beamline elements. Tracing the beam centroid has meaning only when the beam centroid is displaced from the reference trajectory with a Centroid Piece after the Beam Piece in the beamline model. The Output Result selection determines the Order of the transfer matrix to be written to the Transport Output and Transport Punch files.

Transport Options 🗙							
Calculation Print At Print At Output File Punch Order Every Element Last Element Ordions Ordion							
Calculation C Zero C C First O	Calculation Order C Zero Order C First Order						
Secon Third C Output Re	Second Order Apply Second Order Path Length Correction Third Order Output Result						
C Centro	C Centroid Output Only						
 Secon 	Second Order (T) Transfer Matrix						
C Third Order (U) Transfer Matrix							

Figure 35. Calculation Order and the Output Result.

The Order of the Output Result can not be higher then the Order of Calculation. Output Result options higher than the specified Calculation Order will be inactive.



Print Options

The tab panels illustrated in Figure 36 may be used to specify Print Options at the end of the beamline model or after every piece in the model. However, it is also possible to specify output at specific locations in the beamline using the Marker or Final Pieces.



This correction only applies to the second-order path length with second or third-order calculations. The path length correction is on by default.

The Marker and Final Pieces may be used to specify output at specific locations in the beamline. Refer to the Marker Piece Section in the Beamline Elements Chapter.



Figure 36. Specifying Output after every Piece or at the end of the Model.



Output and Punch File Options

The TRANSPORT Options Window is also used to set up several parameters for specifying and formatting data to be written to the Transport Output file and to the Transport Punch file. In addition, the Output File Options tab panel includes several options for generating Auxiliary files.

The Output File Options tab panel, shown in Figure 37, includes two options panels, one for Transport Output File Options and another for selecting among a variety of Auxiliary Files that can be generated from TRANSPORT. The File Options panel provides selections that effect the content and format of the Transport Output file. The Transport Output file is the native text file generated by TRANSPORT and displayed by PBO Lab automatically after TRANSPORT is executed. The options provided are those most frequently encountered by TRANSPORT users. Note that the Output File Options effect the Transport Output file only, not other PBO Lab display windows.

Calculation Pr Order Eve	rint At ry Element	Print At Last Element	Output File Options	Punch File Options
File Options	put File			
🦵 Print Du	ring Fitting		(The Output File Options tab panel includ
🔽 Print Du	ring & After Fit	ting		various content and format options for the
☑ Use (mm) and (mr) units for Transverse Beam Matrix			Transport Output File and selections for	
🔲 80 columns Beam Display (reduced sigma)			generating a variety of Auxiliary Files	
- Auxiliary Files (with f MAD - M TRANSI LATDEF STRUCT ACAD -	itted results) — Aethodical Acc PORT - Transp F - Lattice Defir F - STRUCT inp Autocad input	elerator Design in; ort input file nition input file ut file : file	out file	

Figure 37. TRANSPORT Output File Options and Auxiliary Files.

The Auxiliry Files panel includes several different input files that can be generated by TRANSPORT for the beamline model in the Document Window.



The different Auxiliary files that can be generated include: (1) Methodical Accelerator Definition (MAD) input file, (2) TRANSPORT input file (created by TRANSPORT, not PBO Lab), (3) Latice Definition (LATDEF) input file, (4) STRUCT input file, and (5) Autocad input file. These files will be generated when TRANSPORT is executed for the corresponding selections in the Auxiliary Files panel. Once these files are generated, they can be viewed in Text Edit Windows using the PBO Lab View Menu commands in the Document Window. Refer to the **TRANSPORT** View Menu Section in Chapter 5: TRANSPORT Menus. All of the files use "Auxiliary.tout" as a root name with their own extensions appended to the end. For example if the MAD option is selected, a file named "Auxiliary.tout.mad" will be generated. If a file of the same name exists when a new file is generated then it will be overwritten with the new file.

The Punch File Options tab panel, shown in Figure 38, provides options for writing transfer matrices to the Transport Punch file. The Punch file is a secondary data file generated by TRANSPORT that can be viewed in Text Edit Windows using the PBO Lab View Menu commands for TRANSPORT. As with the other TRANSPORT I/O files, the data will be overwritten each time TRANSPORT is executed. You can save previously generated output by using the Save As command in the File Menu of the Text Edit Windows used to view the files.

Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for a description of the Auxiliary files that can be generated.

The Punch File Options tab panel provides options for writing transfer matrices to the Transport Punch file.

🛃 Transport Opti	ons			2	
Calculation Order	Print At Every Element	Print At Last Element	Output File Options	Punch File Options	
Virite Punu C No Dat C First O Second O	ch File Transfer Matri a Printed rder Matrix rder Matricies (if 'Out V All Matrix Term X and y Terms X arms Only	ices Before and Afte put Result' is higher s Only	r Fits than First Order):		
	✓ x' Terms Only y Terms Only y' Terms Only z Terms Only		Additional o the Transpo Punch Fi	utput can be ort Punch file le Options ta	directed to from the b panel
	z' Terms Only				

Figure 38. TRANSPORT Punch File Options.



This page is intentionally blank.

PBO Lab ^w 2.0

TRANSPORT Plot Specifications

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



8. TRANSPORT Plot Specifications

The Transport Plot Specification Window is used to define the type of plot data that will be generated by TRANSPORT and the Graph Plot Window that will be displayed by PBO Lab after TRANSPORT is executed. Figure 39 shows the window that is brought up when the Transport Plot Specification Command is selected in TRANSPORT Commands Menu.

Any Plot Specifications will be saved with the beamline model when the Save, or Save As, command is selected in the Document Window.

PBO-Lab	- Example B - Modified.pbol		
Eile Edit V	jew <u>⊂ommands</u> <u>T</u> ools Tutoria		
	TRANSPORT	Write Input and Transport Plot : Write Input and View 'Transport Run 'Transport	Transport Plot Specification Window is Opened from the TRANSPORT Commands Menu
Drift Drift Quad Siterrid Siterrid Reterd	Beam Energy Beam Current Frequency Maximum Step Size	Show R-Matrix Show Sigma M List Windows Options Dorift Drift Drift DRFT DRFT	Plot Selection C Matrix Elements vs. Length C Envelope, Centroid and Lattice vs. Length C Floor Coordinates Top View C Final Ellipse Plots No Plots Matrix Elements vs. Length Beam Matrix C Correlation Matrix R Matrix R Matrix Reg I I I I I I I I Defete
Eend V			S11 S12 S13 S14 S15 S16 S21 S22 S23 S24 S25 S26 S31 S32 S33 S34 S35 S36 S41 S42 S43 S44 S45 S46 S51 S52 S53 S54 S55 S56 S61 S62 S63 S64 S65 S66

Figure 39. Opening the Transport Plot Specification Window.

The Plot Specification Window is used to set up a variety of different graphic output plots. TRANSPORT can only generate data for one plot type in a given run, so one of the available plot types must be selected using the radio buttons in the Plot Selection panel in the upper left corner of the window. Four plot types are available: (1) Matrix Elements vs. Length, (2) Envelope, Centroid and Lattice functions vs. Length, (3) Floor Plots, (4) Final Ellipse Plots, or No Plots.



In order to activate the Plot Selections panel so a different plot type can be selected, all plot variables for the current plot type must be cleared with the Delete All button. The Matrix Elements vs. Length selection uses the matrix controls to select specific matrix elements (Figure 40). The Envelope, Centroid and Lattice functions vs. Length panel is used when the Plot Selection is set for this plot type. The Floor Plot type has an adjacent pop-up to specify Side View or Top View. The Final Ellipse Plot type and No Plot selections require no additional user input. The last panel in the lower right corner of the Plot Specifications Window is used to select up to four different plot variables for both the Matrix Elements vs. Length and Envelope, Centroid and Lattice functions vs. Length plot types.



Figure 40. Transport Plot Specifications Window.



The last plot type in the Plot Selection panel is for no plots. This is the default plot type. When a new untitled Document is created the No Plots option is selected. Plot data will not be generated and a Graph Plot window will not be opened following the execution of TRANSPORT.

The following Sections describe each of the Plot Selections types separately. A description of the different features available in the PBO Lab Graph Plot Windows can be found in the main PBO Lab User Manual. The TRANSPORT keywords that are used to generate plot data are listed in Table 6.

Plotting Matrix Elements vs. Length

When choosing to plot Matrix Elements vs. Length, as many as four different matrix elements may be selected for an individual Graph Plot. The Matrix elements may be selected from: (a) R_{ij} , First-Order Transfer Matrix, (b) RA_{ij} , Auxiliary First-Order Transfer Matrix, (c) T_{ijk} , Second-Order Transfer Matrix, (d) TA_{ijk} , Auxiliary Second-Order Transfer Matrix, (e) U_{ijkl} , Third-Order Transfer Matrix, (f) UA_{ijkl} , Auxiliary Third-Order Transfer Matrix, (g) Beam Matrix, and (h) Correlation Matrix. The Matrix Elements panel in the lower left corner of the Plot Specification Window is active only when the Matrix Elements vs. Length radio button is selected in the Plot Selection panel (Figure 40).

To select a matrix element, first chose the radio button in the Matrix Elements vs. Length panel for the desired transfer matrix: R-Matrix, T-Matrix, U-Matrix, Beam Matrix or Correlation Matrix. The R and T Matrix selections also provide a pop-up to select between the Regular Matrix or the Auxiliary Matrix. The T-Matrix selection requires an additional selection to specify the i index, and the U-Matrix requires both i and j indices to be specified. This is done with the pop-ups to the right of the Matrix radio buttons. The 6x6 matrix table at the bottom of the Matrix Elements panel is then used to select individual matrix elements.

Clicking in a cell of the matrix table will highlight that cell and the selection can then be added using the Set button.



Clicking in a cell of the matrix table will highlight that cell and the selection can then be added using the Set button. After a selection is made, the corresponding TRANSPORT keyword (Table 6) will appear in the plot variable list in the lower right corner of the Plot Specification Window (Figure 40). Selections can also be removed from the list; first highlight the item to be removed by clicking on it, then press the Delete button. The Delete All button clears all plot variables from the list.

Beam & Correlation:	Beam	Correlation	
i, j, k & l = 1,6	Sij	Cij	
Transfer Matrices:	Regular	Auxiliary	
First-Order	R _{ij}	RAij	
Second-Order	T_{ijk}	TA_{ijk}	
Third-Order	Uijkl	UAijkl	
Beam Envelopes:	Half Width	Half Angle	
Horizontal	XBEAM	XPBEAM	
Vertical	YBEAM	YPBEAM	
Longitudinal	LBEAM	DELBEAM	
Beam Centroids:	Position	Angle	
Horizontal	XC	XPC	
Vertical	YC	YPC	
Longitudinal	DLC	DELC	
Lattice Functions:	Horizontal	Vertical	
$\beta_x \qquad \beta_y$	BETAX	BETAY	
$\alpha_x \alpha_y$	ALPHAX	ALPHAY	
$\eta_x = \eta_y$	ETAX	ETAY	
η_{ix} η_{iy}	DETAX	DETAY	

Table 6.	TRANSPORT	Keywords.
----------	-----------	-----------

Plotting Envelope, Centroid and Lattice Functions vs. Accumulated Length

The Envelope, Centroid and Lattice Functions vs. Length panel in the upper right corner of the Plot Specification Window is active only when the corresponding radio button is selected in the Plot Selection panel.

Table 6 shows the TRANSPORT Keywords that can be used for Plot Specifications.

When a plot selection is made, the TRANSPORT keyword will appear in the Plot Variable panel in the lower right corner of the Plot Specification Window.



Only one of the three options (Envelopes, Centroids or Lattice Functions) can be chosen at a time. First select one of the radio buttons and then make a selection from the corresponding pop-up (Figure 41). Up to four selections can be set for a given option by choosing the desired pop-up item and pressing the Set button. Use the Delete or Delete All buttons to removed a selected variable or clear all the plot variables from the list.



Figure 41. Beam Envelopes, Beam Centroids and Lattice Functions.



Floor plots can also be generated using the PBO Lab Tools for Focusing and Bending Trajectories in the Tools Menu.

You may need to clear previously selected plot variables with the Delete All button, in order to activate the Plot Selection radio buttons. **Plotting Floor Coordinates**

This plot type is used to generate top and side view Graph Plots for floor coordinates of the reference trajectory. The pop-up to the right of the Floor Coordinates radio button is used to select between top and side views. There is no additional input required in the Plot Specification Window. However, included with the Global Parameters in the Document Window are a set of Initial Floor Coordinate Parameters (Figure 4). These are used to specify the initial coordinates and the orientation of the reference trajectory for plotting floor coordinates.

Plotting Final Ellipses

This plot type is used to generate horizontal and vertical Transverse Phase Space Ellipse Plots for the end of the beamline. There are no additional inputs required for this plot type, simply choose the Final Ellipse Plots radio button in the Plot Selection panel (Figure 39). A Final Ellipse Graph Plot Window (Figure 42) will be opened automatically after running TRANSPORT.



Figure 42. Phase Space Ellipse Plot.

Graph Plot Windows

A Graph Plot window is automatically opened, for the Transport Plot Specifications selected when the Write Input & Run Transport command is issued. The selected Transport Plot Specification will be automatically generated in a PBO Lab Graph Plot Window after TRANSPORT is executed. The Graph Plot Windows provide a variety of interactive features which are described in the PBO Lab User Manual. Refer to the Graph Plot Windows Section in the Analysis Tools Chapter of the main PBO Lab User Manual.

PBO Lab[®] 2.0

TRANSPORT Fitting

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module



9. TRANSPORT Fitting

The TRANSPORT program can be used to find solutions for a wide of variety of beamline fitting problems. Fitting problems are formulated in terms of constraints and variables. Selected beamline element parameters are varied in an effort to satisfy ("fit") the constraints. Fitting constraints are algebraic expressions defined in terms of user-specified Named Parameters and Fitting Variables in the beamline model as well as a number of different TRANSPORT output parameters.

PBO Lab provides a drag & drop - point & click user interface for setting up and running a TRANSPORT fitting problem. Fitting Constraints are specified in user friendly windows accessed from Marker or Final Pieces that can be inserted anywhere in the beamline model. Parameter Variables are specified in Special Parameter Settings Windows accessed from any Piece Window. Interactive List Windows that organize all of the Fitting Variables and Constraints for the entire beamline model are accessed from the TRANSPORT Commands Menu. Fitting Variables can be examined after fitting and the beamline model can be updated with any or all of the fit values in the Update Window which is opened automatically following the fit procedure.

A Symbolic Parameter Name may be defined for a Piece Parameter without using it as a Fitting Variable. These Named Parameters may then be used to define Parameter Algebraic Expressions for other Piece Parameters. Parameter Expressions can also be specified in terms of user-defined Fitting Variables and TRANSPORT program variables. Refer to chapter 4: Special Parameter Settings, for a description of Symbolic Parameter Names, Parameter Expressions and selecting a Parameter as a Fitting Variable.

This Chapter describes the user interface for setting up a TRANSPORT fitting problem. The "TRANSPORT User Manual" describes specific fitting capabilities of the program in more detail.

Fitting problems are formulated in terms of fitting constraints and variables. Selected beamline model parameters are varied in an effort to satisfy ("fit") the constraints.

Fitting Constraints can be specified with Marker or Final Pieces that can be inserted anywhere in the beamline model.

Interactive List Windows provide quick access to all of the userspecified Variables, Expressions and Constraints for the entire beamline model.

A Symbolic Parameter Name may be defined for a Piece Parameter without using it as a Fitting Variable.

Parameter Algebraic Expressions may be defined in terms of user-specified Named Parameters and/or Fitting Variables.

Refer to the Special Parameter Settings Section in Chapter 4 of this Supplement.



Fitting Variables are selected in Special Parameter Settings windows that are opened with the Special ("S") button to the left of most parameters in PBO Lab Piece Windows.

A Fitting Variable that has a Symbolic Parameter Name identical to a Piece Comment will also result in the first parameter (regardless of name) for that Piece to be varied.

Fitting Variables

Many of the input parameters for the various beamline elements can be selected by the user as TRANSPORT Fitting Variables. Fitting Variables are selected in Special Parameter Settings Windows that are opened with the Special ("S") button to the left of most parameters in PBO Lab Piece Windows. Figure 43 illustrates selecting the Magnetic-Field Gradient parameter in a Quadrupole Piece Window; pressing the "S" button opens the Special Parameter Settings Window for the associated parameter. The second radio button in the TRANSPORT tab panel of the S-Window, selects the parameter as a TRANSPORT Fitting Variable using the Parameter Name specified at the top of the window.



Figure 43. Opening a Special Parameter Settings Window.



Transport Fitting Variables must be native inputs to TRANSPORT in order to be varied during fitting. Green dots appear next to "native" TRANSPORT parameters in Piece Windows when the Application Context is set for TRANSPORT as illustrated in Figure 43. The S-Buttons will be inactive for those parameters without green dots. Native (green dot) parameters that do not support special parameter settings will not have a Transport tab panel in the Special Parameter Settings Window.

Many PBO Lab Pieces provide alternative parameter sets for specifying inputs for TRANSPORT. For example the Quadrupole Piece illustrated in Figure 43 can be defined in terms of three different parameter sets (selected with the Quadrupole Strength pop-up at the top of the Quad Piece Window). Depending on the users preferred set, different Piece Parameters will be used as native inputs to TRANSPORT. The green dots next to native parameters will reflect the current parameter set and only those parameters will be used as TRANSPORT inputs for the Piece. A Fitting Variable previously defined for a different parameter set will have no effect. For example, both the Magnetic Field at Pole Tip and the Magnetic-Field Gradient parameters could be selected as Fitting Variables by switching the Quadrupole Strength selection. However, only one of these parameters will be used as input for TRANSPORT (according to the current Quadrupole Strength selection), so the other will not be an input for the Quad and will not be varied during fitting.

The example illustrated in Figure 43 shows the Magnetic-Field Gradient defined by the Symbolic Parameter Name "VARY4". This parameter has been selected as a Fitting Variable in the Transport tab panel of the S-Window. Fitting Variables are always defined by the applicationindependent Symbolic Parameter Name specified in the S-Window. If a name has not been specified it will be generated when the Fitting Variable selection is made in the TRANSPORT tab panel. Some (but not all) Piece Parameters may be selected as Fitting Variables and used by TRANSPORT to fit userspecified Constraint Expressions.

TRANSPORT supports up to twenty (20) independent user-specified Fitting Variables.

The green dots next to Piece Parameters reflect the current Application Context and the users parameter set selection. Only green dot parameters will be used as TRANSPORT input for the Piece.

All special parameter settings are saved with the beamline model when using a Save, or Save As, command.



A Parameter Name may be defined for use in an Parameter Algebraic Expression without selecting the Parameter as a Fitting Variable.

A Piece Parameter may be varied or it may be defined by an expression, but not both.

Alias Pieces can also be used to couple multiple beamline elements for a fitting problem.

Creating a copy of a Piece with Special Parameter Settings, either with the cut/copy/paste commands or by simply dragging a copy to the work space, will also copy the Special Parameter Settings from the original Piece to the duplicate.

Using a Symbolic Parameter Name that is identical to a Piece comment may cause unintended results. The Symbolic Parameter Names can also be used in Algebraic Expressions specified for other Piece parameters as described in the Parameter Algebraic Expressions Section of Chapter 4: Special Parameter Settings. During a fitting procedure, Algebraic Parameter Expressions are evaluated at each iteration. After fitting has completed, the new values for all of the Fitting Variables and Parameter Algebraic Expressions can be used to update the beamline model.

Alias Pieces can also be used to couple multiple beamline elements during a fitting procedure. Refer to the Aliases Section in the User Interface Chapter of the main PBO Lab User Manual, for a description of Alias Pieces.

Creating a copy of a Piece with Special Parameter Settings will also copy those settings. For example if a Piece Parameter has been selected as a Fitting Variable and that Piece is copied in the beamline, then there would be two parameters defined by the same Parameter Name. Both instances of the Parameter Variable will be sent to TRANSPORT but the initial value for the first Fitting Variable encountered will be used for any other Variables in the beamline that have the same Parameter Name. Copying Pieces that have Parameter Algebraic Expressions will duplicate those expressions on the copied Piece but otherwise present no difficulties.

A Piece with a Comment that is the same as any Symbolic Parameter Name selected as a Fitting Variable can cause the first parameter of that Piece to be varied. This may be unintended. To avoid this, make sure that no Symbolic Parameter is used as a Piece Comment.



Named Parameters List Window

All of the Piece Parameters in the beamline model and on the Work Space that have been given Symbolic Parameter Names will be listed in the Named Parameter List Window. Named Parameters that are selected as Fitting Variables are indicated with an "X" in the Fit column of the Named Parameters List Window as illustrated in Figure 44.

Any Parameter with a Symbolic
 Parameter Name will be included in
 the Named Parameters List Window.
 Fitting Variables are indicated with an
 "X" in the Fit column of the Named
 Parameters List Window.



Figure 44. Named Parameters List Window.

Named Parameters can be easily selected (and unselected) as Fitting Variables by clicking in the "Fit" column of the List Window. A Param Piece can be created for selected parameters in the List Window by using the Create Param Piece Button. Refer to the Parameters and Expressions List Windows Section in Chapter 4: Special Parameter Settings.

Refer to the Parameters and Expressions List Windows Section in Chapter 4: Special Parameter Settings.





The Marker and Final Pieces are used to define application-specific Fitting Constraints and Diagnostics at specific beamline locations. Fitting Constraints

TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints are defined as locationspecific algebraic expressions of user-specified Named Parameters and Fitting Variables, as well as a variety of TRANSPORT output parameters. Multiple Fitting Constraint Expressions may be defined for different locations in the beamline model.

Fitting Constraints are defined at user-specified locations in the beamline model using Marker or Final Pieces. Drag a Marker or Final Piece from the Palette Bar and insert it at the desired location in the beamline model. Open the Marker Piece Window by double-clicking the Piece icon as illustrated in Figure 45.



Figure 45. Marker and Final Pieces are used to mark locations in the beamline for specifying TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints.



A Marker Piece is used to define application-specific Constraints, Diagnostics and Stored Parameters that are dependent on a specific location in the beamline model. A Marker Piece can be used by all installed Application Modules and therefore depends on the current Application Context. The Application Context can be changed in the Document Window or directly in the Marker Piece Window as illustrated in Figure 46. Refer to the Marker Piece Section in Chapter 3:Beamline Elements for a description of using the Marker and Final Pieces.

The Constraints panel of the Marker Piece Window contains a list of all the specified Constraint Expressions for this location in the beamline. Each entry is preceded by the Application Module name. Making a selection in this list and pressing the Remove button will delete that entry from the list without having to open the Constraints Window. The Open buttons in the Marker Piece window use the Application Context to open the appropriate application-specific user interface window.

The Constraints panel of the Marker Piece Window contains a list of all the specified Constraints for this location in the beamline model.

Location Marker	×	The Application Context m	ust be set for
Energe TRANSPORT		TRANSPORT to Open the 7	RANSPORT
Transport R11 + R22 = 0.0000000 Tol = 0.000100		Fitting Constraints	Window
Transport R33 + R44 = 0.000000, Tol = 0.000100			
Marylie TX = 0.550000, Tol = 0.001000			
Maryle 17 = 0.300000, 101 = 0.001000	-	Transport Fitting Constraints	×
Open	Remove	Constraint Expression	Value Tolerance
		R11 + R22 =	▼ 0.0000 ± 0.0001
Transport Boom (Signo) Matrix		Select Metrix	
Transport Beam Centroid (if off axis)		Beam Matrix C Correlation Matrix	
Turtle Scatter - X' vs. X			
Turtie Scatter - Y'VS. Y	-	C R Matrix Reg	
Open	Remove	C T Matrix Reg - i 1 -	COS SIN TAN
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
- Store		CUMatrix Reg 🝸 🌵 🝸 J 📋 🝸	SQRT LOG
Transport r11=R11	<u>^</u>		
Transport r22=R22 Transport r33=R33		S11 S12 S13 S14 S15 S16 Horizontal Beam Half V	Adth (x)
Transport r44=R44	_	S21 S22 S23 S24 S25 S26	Accept
	7	S31 S32 S33 S34 S35 S36	
Open	Remove	S41 S42 S43 S44 S45 S46 Accelerator Function E	JetaX
		S51 S52 S53 S54 S55 S56	
MARK following CELL 1		S61 S62 S63 S64 S65 S66 Beam Line Accumulate	d Length
WARK TO DOWING CEEL_T			
		Constraint Expression	Value Tolerance A
		R11+R22	1000,0 000,0
		R33 + R44	0.0000 0.0001

Figure 46. Marker Piece Window Constraints and Diagnostics.

With TRANSPORT as the selected Application Context in the Marker Piece Window, pressing the Open button in the Constraints panel will open the TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints Window (Figure 46).

To open the Transport Fitting Constraints Window the Application Context switch must be set for TRANSPORT.



Transport Fitting Constraints Windows are accessed from Marker or Final Pieces placed in the beamline model.

The Constraint Expression field at the top of the Fitting Constraints Window can be used to directly enter expressions defined in terms of Named Parameters, Fitting Variables as well as a variety of TRANSPORT output parameters.

Fitting Constraints Window

A TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints Window is opened by double-clicking any Marker or Final Piece in the beamline model. The Open button in the Constraints panel of the Marker Piece Window opens the Fitting Constraints Window (Figure 46) for the current Application Context. The Application Context can be set in the Document window or directly in the Marker Piece window.

The Constraint Expression field at the top of the Fitting Constraints Window (Figure 47) can be used to directly enter expressions in terms of Named Parameters, Fitting Variables and TRANSPORT output parameters. After assigning a Fit Value and Tolerance, the Accept button is used to add the Constraint to the list at the bottom of the window. Figure 47 illustrates the primary features of the Transport Fitting Constraints Window.

Enter an Algebraic Constraint Expression in

		terms of TRANSPORT program variables and user-specified Parameter and Fitting Variables
Image: Second strain	Value Toler I 0000 ± 0.0010 Itatrix Operators Itatrix I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	 Specify a Value and Tolerance to the "Fit" Constraint Type in Mathematical Operators and Functions directly or use the Operators Panel The "Accept" Button accepts the user-specified Expression, Value and Tolerance and adds it to the Constraint Expression List at the bottom of the window The "Delete" Button will Remove a Selected Constraint from the Constraint Expression List
(R33+R44)/(2*COS(0.30*2*Pl))	ssion value lotera	ance
(R11+R22)/(2*COS(0.55*2*PI))	1.0000	Make a selection the Constraints List to edit the Expression and change the Value or Tolerance

Figure 47. Transport Fitting Constraints Window.



Several TRANSPORT output parameters can be selected for use in Constraint Expressions. Table 7 lists the TRANSPORT keywords (output parameters) that are supported in Constraint Expressions. Each category in Table 7 is represented in the point & click interface of the TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints Window.

Several TRANSPORT output parameters can be selected for use in Constraint Expressions.

Correlation Matrix (i,j =1,6)	Keyword	Be	am Matrix (i,j =1,6)	Keyword
Beam Correlation Matrix Element	C ij	Re	duced Sigma Matrix Element	S ij
Transfer Matrices (i,j,k,l =1,6)	Keyword	Tr	ansfer Matrices (i,j,k,l =1,6)	Keyword
1st-Order Transfer Matrix Element	R ij	1st	-Order Auxiliary Matrix	RA ij
2nd-Order Transfer Matrix Elemen	t Tijk	2n	d-Order Auxiliary Matrix	TA ijk
3rd-Order Transfer Matrix Element	t U ijkl	3rc	l-Order Auxiliary Matrix	UA ijkl
Beam Centroids	Keyword	Be	am Envelopes	Keyword
Horizontal Beam Centroid Position	n XBEAM	Но	rizontal Beam Half Width	XBEAM
Horizontal Beam Centroid Angle	XPBEAM	Но	rizontal Beam Half Angle	XPBEAM
Vertical Beam Centroid Position	YBEAM	Ve	rtical Beam Half Width	YBEAM
Vertical Beam Centroid Angle	YPBEAM	Ve	rtical Beam Half Angle	YPBEAM
Longitudinal Beam Centroid Positio	n LBEAM	Lo	ngitudinal Beam Half Width	LBEAM
Longitudinal Beam Centroid Angle	DELBEAM	Lo	ngitudinal Beam Half Angle	DELBEAM
Floor Coordinates	Keyword	La	ttice Functions	Keyword
Beamline Accumulated Length	L	Ac	celerator Function BetaX	BETAX
Floor Coordinate X Value	XFLOOR	Ac	celerator Function AlphaX	ALPHAX
Floor Coordinate Y Value	YFLOOR	Ac	celerator Function BetaY	BETAY
Floor Coordinate Z Value	ZFLOOR	Ac	celerator Function AlphaY	ALPHAY
View Reference Trajectory Angle	YAW	Ac	celerator Function EtaX	ETAX
Reference Trajectory Horz. Angle	PITCH	Ac	celerator Function DeltaX	DETAX
Net Rotation Angle about Trajectory	ROLL	Ac	celerator Function EtaY	ETAY
Elevation H	ELEVATION	Ac	celerator Function DeltaY	DETAY

Table 7. TRANSPORT Keywords for use in Constraint Expressions.

The Beam Matrix, Correlation Matrix and Transfer Matrices are selected with the radio buttons shown in Figure 47. The Matrix panel in the lower left portion of the window will reflect the current matrix selection and is used to select specific matrix elements for all matrices. The pop-ups for the first-, second- and third-order Transfer Matrices are used to specify Regular and Auxiliary Matrices. The second- and third-order Transfer Matrices also have pop-ups for the additional dimensions required for these selections.

The Beam Matrix, Correlation Matrix and Transfer Matrices are selected with radio buttons; the Matrix panel in the lower left portion of the window is used to select specific matrix elements for all matrices.



Any keyword for a TRANSPORT output parameters including matrix elements, may be typed directly in the Constraint Expression field. For example "T346" would be entered as the keyword for the second-order Transfer matrix element T3,4,6.

The Constraint Expression list at the bottom of the window contains all of the fitting constraints defined for this location in the beamline model. There are also pop-up controls, which have several selections each, for four different categories: Beam Envelopes, Beam Centroids, Lattice (Accelerator) Functions as well as Floor Coordinates and Orientation variables. You don't need to know the TRANSPORT keywords in order to formulate a Constraint Expression with TRANSPORT output parameters. Simply chose a category, either from the matrix radio buttons or the various pop-up controls. Use the matrix panel to select a specific matrix element or make a selection from one of the pop-ups; the keyword for your selection will be generated automatically in the Constraint Expression Field at the top of the window. After assigning a Fit Value and Tolerance, use the Accept button to add the constraint to the list at the bottom of the window.

The Constraint Expression list at the bottom of the window contains all of the Fitting Constraints defined for this location in the beamline model. To select an existing Constraint Expression click on the entry in the list. The selection will be highlighted and the edit fields at the top of the window will be updated with the selection. Press the Accept button to update the expression with any changes. The Delete button is used to remove an existing constraint. Select the constraint in the Constraint Expression list and press the Delete button. A constraint can also be deleted directly from the Marker Piece window without opening the Fitting Constraints Window. Select the constraint in the constraints list in the Marker (or Final) Piece Window and then press the Remove button in the Constraint panel.

The expression list in the Fitting Constraints Window includes only the constraints for that location in the beamline. Other constraints may be specified at different locations with additional Marker or Final Pieces. All of the user-specified Fitting Constraint Expressions for the entire beamline model are organized in the Constraint Expressions List Window, which is described in the next Section.



Constraint Expressions List Window

Multiple Marker and Final Pieces can be used to specify Fitting Constraints at different locations in the beamline model. PBO Lab provides a Constraint Expressions List Window that groups all of the application-specific constraints over the entire beamline model. The Constraint Expressions List Window (shown in Figure 48) is opened from the TRANSPORT Commands menu.

PBO Lab provides a Constraint Expressions List Window that groups all of the application-specific userspecified constraints over the entire beamline model.



Figure 48. Constraint Expressions List Window.

This List Window provides quick access to TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints over the entire beamline. Simply double click an entry in the list to open the associated Marker or Final Piece Window. Only TRANSPORT Fitting Constraints are contained in this window. Other Applications have their own List Windows that are accessed from their respective Command Menus.

PBO Lab List Windows may be resized to accommodate the number of entries. The columns in the List Windows may also be resized by placing the mouse over the column divider in the header of the List Window. The arrow cursor will turn into a cross-hair cursor and the column can be resized by holding down the mouse button and draging the column divider to the desired position. All of the user-specified Fitting Constraint Expressions for the entire beamline model are organized in the Fitting Constraint Expressions List Window.

List Windows may be resized to accommodate the number of entries. Column widths can also be adjusted within the List Windows.



The "Write Input and Run Transport" Command can be used to run TRANSPORT "with Fitting" or "without Fitting".

Perform Fitting

There are two options for running TRANSPORT with the "Write Input and Run Transport" Command. The Submenu for this command (Figure 49), can be used to run TRANSPORT "with Fitting" or "without Fitting". Once Fitting Variables and Constraints have been defined, the "with Fitting" option will generate the required native input to execute TRANSPORT with fitting. It is not necessary to remove Fitting Variables and Constraints from beamline model in order the to execute TRANSPORT without fitting. The only difference between the two options (with or without fitting) is that PBO Lab will not include the FIT instruction in the native TRANSPORT input if "without Fitting" is selected. Otherwise the Fitting Variables and Constraint Expressions are unchanged in the beamline model.



Figure 49. Execute TRANSPORT and Perform Fitting.

Output File Options in the TRANSPORT Options Window can be used to specify fitting output during and after fitting.

Output results and diagnostics for fitting are found in the Transport Output Window, which is automatically opened following the execution of TRANSPORT. Output File Options in the TRANSPORT Options Window can be used to specify fitting output during and after fitting.



In addition to the native Transport Output for fitting, PBO Lab provides an Update Window for examining the fitted parameter values and evaluated parameter expressions before deciding if the beamline model should be updated with any or all of these new values. The following Section describes the Update Variables & Expressions Window.

Update Variables & Expressions

After TRANSPORT has completed a fitting task, the new values for Fitting Variables and Parameter Expressions can be used to update Piece Parameters in the beamline model. The Update Parameter Variables & Expressions Window, shown in Figure 50, is automatically opened following the execution of TRANSPORT. The Update Window is used to examine the new values for Fitting Variables and Parameter Expressions and to update the beamline model with those values if desired.

After a fitting operation, Fitting Variables are displayed in an Update Window along with Parameter Algebraic Expressions.

The Update Window allows you to examine fitted parameter values and evaluated parameter expressions before deciding if the beamline model should be updated. The beamline model is not changed until the new values are explicitly accepted in the Update Window.



Figure 50. Update Variables and Expressions Window.



Double-click a Fitting Variable or Parameter Expression to open the Piece Window for that parameter.

Both the Variables and Expressions lists have buttons for updating the specific Piece Parameters in the beamline model with the new values displayed in the Update Window.

Using the mouse to double-click an entry in the Update Window, will open the Piece Window for that parameter.

If the Update Window is closed prior to updating the beamline, then the fitting results will be disposed and the beamline model will remain unchanged.

Refer to the "TRANSPORT User Manual" for additional information on the TRANSPORT program. The Update Window contains two scrolling lists, one for Fitting Variables and the other for Parameter Expressions. The list at the top of the window displays all of the user specified TRANSPORT Fitting Variables for the entire beamline model along with the initial and final values.

The list at the bottom of the Update Window contains all of the Piece Parameters that have been specified by Parameter Algebraic Expressions through out the beamline model, along with the final evaluation of those expressions.

Both the Variables and Expressions lists have buttons for updating the specific Piece Parameters in the beamline model with the new values displayed in the Update Window. The Update All Values button can be used to update all of the parameters in one step. Alternatively, the Update Selected Value button can be used to update parameters individually. (There are identical buttons for Parameter Algebraic Expressions in the lower half of the window.) To update Piece Parameters individually make a selection in the list of parameters and press the Update Selected Value button. When a selection is made in the list it will be highlighted. Using the mouse to doubleclick an entry in the list will open the Piece Window containing that parameter.

The Update Window can be left open and the beamline will not be updated with the new parameter values until one of the Update buttons is used. However, if the window is closed prior to updating the beamline, then the fitting results are disposed and the beamline model will be unchanged.

This concludes the TRANSPORT Fitting Chapter and the TRANSPORT Application Module Supplement for the Particle Beam Optics Laboratory. Additional information about the TRANSPORT program can be found in the "TRANSPORT User Manual." Refer to the PBO Lab User Manual for general information about the PBO Lab user interface..

PBO Lab 2.0

Appendix: "TRANSPORT User Manual"

User Manual Supplement: TRANSPORT Application Module